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OUR MISSION

“To satisfy our customers with the highest quality of

products and services; to share the growth of the group

with its own people; to use the best manufacturing

technologies in an eco-friendly environment.”
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LAXMI ORGANIC INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U24200MH1989PLC051736
Registered office: A-22/2/3, MIDC, Mahad, Dist Raigad - 402309

Website: www.laxmiorganic.co.in; Email: info@laxmiorgnic.co.in;
Tel: +91 22 49104444; Fax: +91 22 22853752

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 30" Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled to
be held on THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 5, 2019 at 12.00 NOON at the Registered Office of
the Company to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt (a) the audited financial statement of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2019, the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon; and (b) the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2019, the reports of the Auditors thereon and in this
connection, to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without
modification(s), as an Ordinary Resolution:

a. “"RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2019 and the reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon laid before this meeting, be and are hereby considered and
adopted.”

b. “"RESOLVED THAT the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for
the financial year ended March 31, 2019 and the report of Auditors thereon laid
before this meeting, be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

2. To declare final dividend on equity shares and in this connection, to consider and if
thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification(s), as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the recommendations made by the Board of Directors of
the Company, a final dividend at the rate 3.5% (Rs.0.35 per share) be and is hereby
declared on all the equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in the paid-up capital of the
Company and that the aforesaid dividend be distributed out of the profits of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2019, to whose name appears on the Register of
Equity Shareholders of the Company as on date of 30" Annual General Meeting and in
respect of shares held in electronic form, to those “beneficial members” whose names
appear in the statement of Beneficial Ownership furnished by National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) as on
the close of business hours on the date of 30" Annual General Meeting or to their
mandates”

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajeev Goenka (DIN: 0059346) who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and in this connection, to
consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without
modification(s), as an Ordinary Resolution:

“"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act,
2013, Mr. Rajeev Goenka (DIN: 00059346), Director of the Company, who retires by
rotation at this meeting, being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment, be and is
hereby re-appointed as the Director of the Company whose period of office shall be liable
to determination by retirement of Directors by rotations”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To ratify the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending March 31,
2020 and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:


mailto:info@laxmiorgnic.co.in

“"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof,
for the time being in force), the remuneration of Rs. 148,000/- (excluding Taxes plus out
of pocket expenses at actual), as approved by the Board of Directors and set out in the
Statement annexed to the notice convening this Meeting, to be paid to the M/s B. J. D.
Nanabhoy & Company, the Cost Auditors appointed by the Board of Directors, to
conduct the audit of cost records of the Company for the financial year ending March 31,
2020, be and is hereby ratified.”

5. To re-appoint Mr. Omprakash V. Bundellu (DIN: 00032950) as an Independent Director
and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as an Special Resolution:

“"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the Companies (Appointment and
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, read with Schedule IV to the Act and Regulation
17 and other applicable regulations of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”),
as amended from time to time, Mr. Omprakash V. Bundellu (DIN: 00032950), who was
appointed as an Independent Director not liable to retire by rotation at the 25" Annual
General Meeting of the Company and who holds office up to the conclusion of the 30
Annual General Meeting of the Company in the Financial Year 2019-20 and who is eligible
for re-appointment and who meets the criteria for independence as provided in Section
149(6) of the Act along with the rules framed thereunder and who has submitted a
declaration to that effect and in respect of whom the Company has received a Notice in
writing from a Member under Section 160(1) of the Act proposing his candidature for the
office of Director, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the
Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a second term of five years
from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting up to the conclusion of the 35%"
Annual General Meeting of the Company in the Financial Year 2024-25.”

6. To re-appoint Mr. Manish Chokhani (DIN: 00204011) as an Independent Director and in
this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Special Resolution:

“"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the Companies (Appointment and
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, read with Schedule IV to the Act and Regulation
17, as amended from time to time, Mr. Manish Chokhani (DIN: 00204011), who was
appointed as an Independent Director not liable to retire by rotation at the 25" Annual
General Meeting of the Company and who holds office up to the conclusion of the 30
Annual General Meeting of the Company in the Financial Year 2019-20 and who is eligible
for re-appointment and who meets the criteria for independence as provided in Section
149(6) of the Act along with the rules framed thereunder and who has submitted a
declaration to that effect and in respect of whom the Company has received a Notice in
writing from a Member under Section 160(1) of the Act proposing his candidature for the
office of Director, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the
Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a second term of five years
from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting up to the conclusion of the 35t
Annual General Meeting of the Company in the Financial Year 2024-25."

By Order of the Board of Directors

FOR LAXMI ORGANIC INDUSTRIES

LIMITED

Date : July 2, 2019 Sd/-

Place : Mumbai
Mr. Vasudeo Goenka
Chairman
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1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, in
respect of the Special Business set out in the Notice, is annexed hereto.

Notes:

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND PROXY
NEED NOT BE THE MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. An instrument appointing the proxy
in order to be effective, should be deposited at the registered office of the Company, duly
completed and signed, not later than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in
the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights.

A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a
proxy for any other person or shareholder. The holder of proxy shall prove his identity at
the time of attending the Meeting.

3. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives are requested to
send duly certified copy of the board resolution authorizing their representatives to attend
and vote at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

4. Members/Proxies are requested to bring their personal copy of Annual Report and
Attendance Slip duly filled up for attending the Meeting.

5. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the
order of names will be entitled to vote.

6. Members are requested to:

a. Intimate the change in their address, if any, immediately to the Company at its
Corporate Office/Registered Office.

b. Register their e-mail address and the change therein from time to time, immediately
with the Company at its Corporate Office/Registered Office for receiving all
communication including Annual Report, Notices, and Circulars etc. form the Company
electronically.

7. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding,
maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection
by the members at the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the Directors are interested,
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection
by the Members at the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

8. All the documents referred to in the Notice and Explanatory Statement above are open for
inspection at the Corporate Office /Registered Office of the Company between 10.30 a.m.
to 5.30 p.m. on all working days except Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays until the
date of the Annual General Meeting or any adjournment(s) thereof.

9. Final Dividend for the year ended March 31, 2018, if declared, will be paid in respect of
share held in physical form, to those members whose names appear in the Company’s
Register of Members as on the date of Annual General Meeting and, in respect of shares
held in electronic form, to those “beneficial members” whose names appear in the
statement of Beneficial Ownership furnished by National Securities Depository Limited
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) as on the close of
business hours on the date of Annual General Meeting.

10. As per the provisions section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, facility for making
nominations is available for members in respect of the physical shares held by them.
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In terms of the provisions of Section 152 of the Act, details of the Director seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting

is as under:
Name Mr. Rajeev Goenka Mr. Omprakash V. Bundellu Mr. Manish Chokhani
Date of Birth 04/08/1967 15/01/1950 14/10/1966
Date of First 12/08/1994 21/02/2011 30/03/2012
Appointment
Qualification B.Com, MBA MSc, MFM, CAIIB(I) CA, MBA

Terms &
Conditions of Re-
Appointment

In terms of Section 152(6) of the Act, Mr. Rajeev
Goenka who was re-appointed as a Director at the
27" Annual General Meeting held on September
29, 2016 is liable to retire by rotation at the
Meeting.

In terms of Section 149 (10) of the Act, Mr.
Omprakash V. Bundellu who was appointed as an
independent Director at the 25" Annual General
Meeting held on September 24, 2014 is proposed
to be re-appointed for a second term of 5 years.

In terms of Section 149 (10) of the Act, Mr.
Manish Chokhani who was appointed as an
independent Director at the 25" Annual General
Meeting held on September 24, 2014 is proposed
to be re-appointed for a second term of 5 years.

Remuneration last
drawn (including
Sitting Fees, if
any)

Remuneration
proposed to be
paid

a. Sitting Fees approved by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors from time to time.

b. Commission ( within the ceiling limit of 1% of tl

Sitting Fees as approved by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors from

he Net Profit as computed in the manner laid down in

Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013) and
time to time.

Relationship with
other Directors /
Key Managerial

Mr. Rajeev Goenka is a son of Mr. Vasudeo
Goenka, Chairman and Mr. Ravi Goenka,
Managing Director of the Company.

Independent Director

Independent Director

Personnel
No of Meetings of 3 (Three) 5 (Five) 5 (Five)
the Board
Attended during
FY 2018-19
Other 1. Maharashtra Aldehydes & Chemicals Limited 1. Principal Trustee Company Private Limited 1. Enam Securities Limited
Directorships held 2. Alumi Profiles Private Limited 2. Quadrillion Capital Private Limited
as on March 31, 3. Laxmi Capital Services Private Limited 3. Sears Securities & Investments Private
2019 4. Laxmi Bioenergie Limited Limited
5. Suvas Holding Limited 4. Westlife Development Limited
6. Anugrah Investments Limited 5. Shoppers Stop Limited
7. Aqua Mischief Private Limited 6. Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited
8. Brady Investments Private Limited 7. Auxilo Finserve Private Limited
9. Amrutsagar Constructions Private Limited 8. Parksons Packaging Limited
10. International Knowledge Park Private Limited
11. Krishna Meadows Private Limited
12. Laxmi Tank Terminal Private Limited
13. Merton Finance & Trading Private Limited
14. Ojas Dye-Chem (India) Private Limited




15. Unity Portfolio Private Limited

16. Arch Shelters Private Limited

17. Sherry Securities Private Limited

18. Starsilver Mercantile Company Private Limited
19. Alphakids Learning Centres Private Limited

Membership/Chair
manship of
Committees of
Other Company
Boards as on
March 31, 2019

N.A.

No of shares held

96,275

NIL

NIL




EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 (“the Act”)

The following Statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned
in the accompanying Notice:

ITEM NO.4:

The Board, upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment
and remuneration of M/s B. J. D. Nanabhoy & Company, Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of
the cost accounting records maintained by the Company for the products namely, Organic
and Inorganic Chemicals manufactured by the Company at its plant situated at Mahad and
Distillery at Satara for the financial year ending March 31, 2020 on the remuneration Rs.
148,000/- (excluding Taxes plus out of pocket expenses at actual).

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors as recommended
by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board, has to be ratified by the shareholders of
the Company.

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out
at Item No.5 of the notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for
the financial year ending March 31, 2020.

The Board of Directors of your Company recommends the passing of resolution as set out at
Item No.4 as the Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are
concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No.5.

ITEM NO.5:

Based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of
Directors proposes the re-appointment of Mr. Omprakash V. Bundellu (DIN: 00032950) as
Independent Director, for a second term of 5 years from the conclusion of this Annual
General Meeting up to the conclusion of the 35" Annual General Meeting of the Company in
the Financial Year 2024-25, not liable to retire by rotation. Mr. Omprakash V. Bundellu was
appointed as Non-executive Independent Director at the 25" Annual General Meeting
(“"AGM") of the Company and holds office up to the conclusion of this AGM. The Company has,
in terms of Section 160(1) of the Act received in writing a notice from a Member, proposing
his candidature for the office of Director.

The Board, based on the performance evaluation and recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, considers that given his background, experience and contribution,
the continued association of Mr. Omprakash V. Bundellu would be beneficial to the Company
and it is desirable to continue to avail his services as Independent Director.

The Company has received a declaration from him to the effect that he meets the criteria of
independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and Rules framed thereunder. In the
opinion of the Board, he fulfills the conditions specified in the Act for appointment as an
Independent Director and is independent of the management of the Company. Mr.
Omprakash V. Bundellu does not hold any shares in the Company. The terms and conditions
of his appointment shall be open for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of
the Company during the normal business hours on any working day (except Saturday) and
will also be kept open at the venue of the AGM till the conclusion of the AGM.

Mr. Omprakash V. Bundellu has obtained a Masters' Degree in Science and a Masters' Degree
in Financial Management (MFM) from JBIMS, Bombay University and has also completed
CAIIB-I.
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Mr. Omprakash V. Bundellu has participated in a number of seminars/ programmes both in
India and abroad at various premier Institutes including Indian Institute of Management,
Ahmedabad (1IM-A), IMI, Geneva. He has attended the Advanced Management Programme
(AMP) at Harvard Business School (HBS), Boston, USA during April-June 1997. Mr. Bundellu
has joined INDIAN BANK in 1973 as a Probationary Officer and has over a period of 8 years,
gained all-round experience in the multifarious operations of commercial banking. In 1981,
he joined INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA (IDBI) as an Assistant General
Manager (AGM) and over a period of 28 years tenure in IDBI, he gained experience in
Treasury, International and Domestic Funding Division, Credit, HRD, Corporate Planning and
rose to the title of Deputy Managing Director (Board level position) in March 2006 and took
responsibility for the entire Retail Banking Segment in the Bank, which includes Personal
Banking, Agri Banking, SME Business. During his Tenure of Deputy Managing Director at IDBI
he has held positions of Chairman and member in several management committees of IDBI in
a broad range of areas including Credit, Investment, Risk, Audit, Corporate planning, Product
structuring, Asset-Liability Management, etc. He has served as Director in various IDBI Group
Companies and also as a Nominee Director of IDBI on various corporates operating in diverse
industrial sectors viz. cement/steel/ chemicals/ telecom/ IT, etc. Mr. Bundellu had wide
exposure in resource raising viz. foreign currency and rupee borrowings and was instrumental
in raising FC resources for the Bank from multilateral institutional sources, bilateral sources,
and international capital market. In the domestic market, he was instrumental in raising
resources by way of various rupee Bond issues viz. Flexi bonds/Omni bonds series. He was
also instrumental in setting up IDBI’s Dealing Room and Treasury Operations. He has handled
the takeover and merger of United Western Bank with IDBI Bank Itd. During this period, he
was instrumental in setting up new initiatives in IDBI Bank viz. IDBI Gilts, IDBI Fortis Life
Insurance Co. & IDBI Mutual Fund. After retiring from IDBI Bank Ltd in January 2010, he has
served as an Independent Director & Chairman of the Board of CARE Ratings. He is presently
serving as an Independent Director on Principal Trustee Company Private Limited.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV to the Act, the re-
appointment of Mr. Omprakash V. Bundellu as Independent Director is now being placed
before the Members for their approval by way of Special Resolution.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution at Item No. 5 of this Notice for approval of the
Members. Except Mr. Omprakash V. Bundellu and his relatives, none of the Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company and their respective relatives is, in any way, concerned
or interested, in the Resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice.

ITEM NO.6:

Based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of
Directors proposes the re-appointment of Mr. Manish Chokhani (DIN: 00204011) as
Independent Director, for a second term of 5 years from the conclusion of this Annual
General Meeting up to the conclusion of the 35" Annual General Meeting of the Company in
the Financial Year 2024-25, not liable to retire by rotation. Mr. Manish Chokhani was
appointed as Non-executive Independent Director at the 25" Annual General Meeting
(“AGM") of the Company and holds office up to the conclusion of this AGM. The Company has,
in terms of Section 160(1) of the Act received in writing a notice from a Member, proposing
his candidature for the office of Director.

The Board, based on the performance evaluation and recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, considers that given his background, experience and contribution,
the continued association of Mr. Manish Chokhani would be beneficial to the Company and it
is desirable to continue to avail his services as Independent Director.

The Company has received a declaration from him to the effect that he meets the criteria of
independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and Rules framed thereunder. In the
opinion of the Board, he fulfills the conditions specified in the Act for appointment as an
Independent Director and is independent of the management of the Company. Mr. Manish



Chokhani does not hold any shares in the Company. The terms and conditions of his
appointment shall be open for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the
Company during the normal business hours on any working day (except Saturday) and will
also be kept open at the venue of the AGM till the conclusion of the AGM.

Mr. Manish Chokhani is a Chartered Accountant and MBA from the London Business School
and is one of India’s most respected financial experts and investors. From 2006 to 2011, he
was CEO of Enam Securities, India’s leading investment bank. He led its $400 million merger
in 2011 with Axis Bank to create Axis Capital Ltd., which he led as MD & CEO until the end of
2013. Under his leadership, Enam/Axis mobilized — 25% of all equity funds raised in India
and were the house banker to several leading Indian business groups. From 2014 to 2016, he
served as Chairman of TPG Growth in India and from 2016 till date as Senior Advisor to TPG
Group, one of the world’s largest PE firms. He currently serves as independent director on
boards that include Zee Entertainment, Westlife Development (McDonalds), Shoppers Stop
among others. He also serves on the Governing Board of Flame University. He is a Board
Member of Livinguard AG, a healthcare technology company based in Switzerland. Mr.
Chokhani is a member of the Young Presidents’ Organization. He has served as a member of
SEBI's Alternative Investment Promotion Advisory Committee and also as Co-Chairman of the
Capital Markets Committee at the IMC. He has been a visiting faculty member at 1IM-K and
has served on the International Alumni Board and scholarship panels of the London Business
School.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV to the Act, the re-
appointment of Mr. Manish Chokhani as Independent Director is now being placed before the
Members for their approval by way of Special Resolution.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution at Item No. 6 of this Notice for approval of the
Members. Except Mr. Manish Chokhani and his relatives, none of the Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company and their respective relatives is, in any way, concerned
or interested, in the Resolution set out at Item No. 6 of the Notice.
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LAXMI ORGANIC INDUSTRIES LIMITED
A-22/2/3, MIDC, Mahad, Dist Raigad - 402309

ATTENDANCE SLIP

&

I hereby record my presence at the 30" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held
on THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 5, 2019 at 12.00 noon at the Registered Office of the Company.

For Physical
Holdings

For Electronic Form (Demat) Holding
NSDL/CDSL

DP ID Client ID

No. of Shares

NAME OF THE MEMBER/JOINT MEMBER(S) (IN BLOCK LETTERS)

SIGNATURE

NAME OF THE PROXY (IN BLOCK LETTERS)

SIGNATURE

Notes:

1. You are requested to sign and hand over this slip at the entrance of the Meeting Venue
2. This attendance is valid only in case shares are held on the date of the Meeting.
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PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

: U24200MH1989PLC0O51736

Name of Company : Laxmi Organic Industries Limited
Registered Office : A-22/2/3, MIDC, Mahad, Dist Raigad - 402309

Name of Member(s)

Registered Address

Email 1D
Folio No./DP 1D
DP ID
I/We, being the member (s) of ............. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint
1. Name PP PPTPPPS

Address PP

E-mail 1d PP

Signature © e e e eeeeeeeeaEaeee—eetee—eereeateeaeestaeareeareeareareaeearens , or failing him
2. Name N

Address D et reeeeeeeererreee e eeeereeeeetetareeeeettrreeerrert e erar——on

E-mail Id L e ereeeeeeereeteeeeseeeeereeeereeetsteeeeeettnareeeerert e arrrar—.

Signature L et tee et ee e eeeioten Eeteeatee e e ee e et eaatee e e teeeteeabeeeanteeateeaanee , or failing him
3. Name PP PPTPPPS

Address PP

E-mail 1d PP

Signature PP

as my/ our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/ us and on my/ our behalf at the 30t
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 5, 2019 at
12.00 noon at the Registered Office of the Company at A-22/2/3, MIDC, Mahad, Dist Raigad
- 402309 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated
below:

RESOLUTION NO.:

o0k wONE

Adoption of Audited Standalone and Consolidated Accounts for FY 2018-19

Declaration of final dividend on Equity Shares

Appointment of Director in place of Mr. Rajeev Goenka

Ratification of remuneration to be paid to Cost Auditor for FY 2019-20

To re-appoint Mr. Omprakash V. Bundellu (DIN: 00032950) as an Independent Director
To re-appoint Mr. Manish Chokhani (DIN: 00204011) as an Independent Director

Signed this ............. day of .coovviniinnnnn. 2019

Signature of shareholder: ..o

Signature of Proxy holder(S): ....ccovviiiiiiiiiiii e

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at
the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of
the Meeting.




DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Members,
Laxmi Organic Industries Limited

Your Directors are pleased to present their report on the business and operations of your Company
along with the audited accounts of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2019.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Year Ended Year Ended

March 2019 March 2018
Revenue from operation 142,880.4 129,044.4
Profit before depreciation, interest and tax 15,602.0 15,077.0
Finance Cost 1,400.9 853.7
Depreciation 4,092.6 2,881.4
Profit before tax (PBT) 10,108.1 11,342.5
Tax 2,818.2 3,669.8
Net profit 7,279.9 7,703.9

2. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW:

During the year under review, total revenue got increased by 10.7% to Rs. 142,880.4 Lakhs from
Rs.129,044.4 Lacs in the previous year largely due to portfolio rationalization, volume
maximization, and cost rationalization.

Due to high raw material cost the EBIDTA growth has not matched the revenue growth. The
overall Operating EBIDTA has improved by 3.5% to Rs.15,602.0 Lakhs versus Rs.15,077.0 Lakhs
in the previous year. The higher finance cost coupled with higher depreciation cost has inversely
impacted the Profit before tax which reduced by 10.9% to Rs.10,108.1 Lakhs against Rs.11,342.5
Lakhs of the previous year and the Net Profit which reduced by 5.5% to Rs.7,297.9 Lakhs against
Rs.7,703.9 Lakhs of the previous year.

3. TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE:

The Board of Directors of your company has decided not to transfer any amount to the General
Reserve for the year under review.

4. DIVIDEND:

The Directors are pleased to recommend a Dividend of 3.5% on the ordinary shares of the
Company which is Rs. 0.35 per share for the financial year ended March 31, 2019. The Dividend, if
approved by the Members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, will result into an outflow of Rs.
210.39 Lakhs (Rs. 35.23 Lakhs being Corporate Dividend Tax).

The dividend pay-out for the year under review is in accordance with the Dividend Policy approved
and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company.

5. SHARE CAPITAL:

e In the 29" Annual General Meeting of the Company, the shareholders of the Company
approved issue of bonus share in the proportion of 4 (four) new fully paid-up equity shares of
Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten only) each for every 1(one) existing fully paid-up equity shares of Rs.10/-
each held by them. The said bonus shares were allotted to the shareholders in the meeting of
Board of Directors held on 30 January 2019.

e The authorized share capital of the Company was increased from 21,00,00,000/- (Rupees
Twenty-One Crore) divided into 2,10,00,000 (Two Crore Ten Lakh) equity shares of Rs.10/-
(Ten) each to Rs.51,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty-One Crore) divided into 5,10,00,000 (Five
Crore Ten Lakh) equity shares of Rs.10/- (Ten) each during the financial year under review

e The paid-up equity share capital as on 31 March 2019 was Rs.50,04,54,050 /- divided into
5,00,45,405 Shares of Rs.10/- each

e During the year under review, the Company has not issued any securities (neither shares with
differential voting rights nor sweat equity shares), nor has it granted any stock options.

¢ The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the financial year under review.



6. OPERATIONAL REVIEW:

In order to further improve the sales in the territory of China, the Board of Directors of your
Company are evaluating to incorporate a wholly owned subsidiary (WOS) in China.

The Captive Power Plant also ran efficiently during the year yielding the desired results and your
Company got near uninterrupted supply of high-quality power at a lower cost compared to public
sources. Further, the performance of the Distilleries and Windmills have also been satisfactory
during the year.

The Company received 1SO 9001:2015, I1SO 14001:2015 and BS OHSAS 18001:2007 Certifications
with respect to both the plants.

During the year the Hydro Power Project at Yedgaon got commissioned and the power generation
for captive consumption was also started. The work relating to Hydro Power Project at Temghar is
also progressing well.

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
between the end of the financial year as at 31 March 2019 till the date of this report.

7. FINANCE:

During the year under review the Company availed and restructured credit facilities from the
existing Bankers as per the business requirements. Your Company has been regular in paying
interest and repayment of principals of the term lenders.

8. LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS:

Details of loans, guarantees and investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

9. CREDIT RATING:

The Company's credit ratings has been the same by CRISIL at A-/Stable for long term and A2+ for
short term. However, the Company has received a credit rating score of A+ by India Rating for the
year under review.

10. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Company has well established, comprehensive and adequate internal controls commensurate
with the size of the operations, which are designed to assist in identification and management of
business risks and ensuring high standards of corporate governance. The internal financial controls
have been documented, digitized and embedded in the business processes. During the year, such
controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation was
observed.

Assurance on the effectiveness of internal financial controls is obtained through management
reviews, control self-assessment, continuous monitoring by functional experts as well as testing of
the internal financial control systems by the internal auditors during the course of their audits. We
believe that these systems provide reasonable assurance that our internal financial controls are
designed effectively and are operating as intended.

11.VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

The Company has established a mechanism for Directors and employees to report concerns about
unethical behaviour, actual or suspected frauds, mismanagement, and violation of our Code of
Conduct and Ethics. It also provides for adequate safeguard against victimization of employees
who avail of the mechanism and allows direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in
exceptional cases.

12. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE:

The Company’s Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace is in line with the
requirements of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and



Redressal) Act, 2013 (Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace Act) and rules

framed thereunder. Internal Complaints Committee have also been set up to redress complaints
received regarding sexual harassment.

During the year under review, no complaints of sexual harassment were received by the Company.
The Company is committed to providing a safe and conducive work environment to all of its
employees and associates.

13. PERSONNEL / HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT:

Just like the previous year, even during the year under review, the Company had conducted a
workshop in Mumbai to further enhance the goal setting exercise and to align business activities
with the vision and strategy and significantly achieve the set goals for the financial year 2019-20.
The Company is putting its best effort to align the goals of junior level employee with that of the
vision which top level officials.

The Company is also revamping the performance evaluation process of the employee’s by taking
the digital route in order to expedite the entire performance evaluation process and make it more
transparent.

The employees, as always remain the most valuable asset for the Company and the Company’s
thrust area is to attract, develop and retain talent. The Company continues to provide an
environment of open culture and congenial work atmosphere and healthy industrial relations and is
committed to provide the employee with a pragmatic workplace.

14. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT:

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Ind AS 110 -
Consolidated Financial Statement read with Ind AS - 28 Investments in Associates and Ind AS 31 -
Interests in Joint Ventures, the audited consolidated financial statement is provided in the Annual
Report.

15. SUBSIDIARIES & JOINT VENTURE:
During the year under review, the Company sold its 49% of the total equity shares which it held in
Suvas Holdings Limited to Mr. Ravi Goenka and Mr. Rajeev Goenka. Hence, Suvas Holdings Limited

is no longer an associate / joint-venture of the Company.

The Company presently has following subsidiaries:

Sr. Name & Country of Incorporation Category

No.
1 Laxmi Organic Industries (Europe) BV, Netherlands Wholly Owned Subsidiary

(LOBV)

2 Laxmi Petrochem Middle East FZE, Dubai (LPMEF) Wholly Owned Subsidiary
3 Cellbion Lifesciences Private Limited, India (CLPL) Wholly Owned Subsidiary
4 Laxmi Lifesciences Private Limited, India (LLPL) Wholly Owned Subsidiary
5 Viva Lifesciences Private Limited, India (VLPL) Wholly Owned Subsidiary
6 Saideep Traders, India (ST) Step Down Subsidiary

The annual accounts of Subsidiary Companies are available for inspection by any Shareholder at
the registered office of the Company and interested Shareholder may obtain it by writing to the
Company Secretary of the Company.

The financial information of the Subsidiary Companies as per Section 129(3) of the Act is set out in
Form No. AOC-1 and annexed as an Annexure “"A” to this report.

16. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:
The Directors state that applicable revised Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to

‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’ respectively, have been duly complied
by the Company.



17. DIRECTORS:

During the year under review, Mr. Radhesh Welling departed as Executive Director and CEO of the
Company after completing 3 successful years. During his time with the Company, Radhesh lead to
the Company’s transition to a new performance level and higher standards of delivery for various
functions. This has resulted in evidenced based, outcomes focused gains for the business as well
as tangible benefits to our customers. As an interim arrangement Mr. Partha Roy Chowdhury is
being designated as Interim CEO of the Company until the on boarding of a new CEO is appointed
SO as to ensure continuity.

Mr. Rajeev Goenka (DIN 00059346) retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and
being eligible offer himself for reappointment.

Further, tenure of Mr. Omprakash V. Bundellu and Mr. Manish Chokhani, Independent Directors of
the Company is valid till conclusion of the 30" Annual General Meeting. Hence, they are eligible to
be reappointed for the 2" term of 5 years up to the conclusion of the 35" Annual General Meeting
of the Company in the Financial Year 2024-25.

The Company has also received a declaration with respect to independence and their compliance
with respect to Code for Independent Directors prescribed in Schedule IV to the Companies Act,
2013 from all the Independent Directors of the Company.

Based on the confirmations received, none of the Directors are disqualified for appointment under
Section 164(2) of Companies Act, 2013.

16.1 Board Evaluation:

The Company has devised a Policy for performance evaluation of the Board, Committees and other
individual Directors (including Independent Directors) which include criteria for performance
evaluation of Non-executive Directors and Executive Directors. The evaluation process inter alia
considers attendance of Directors at Board and committee meetings, acquaintance with business,
communicating inter se board members, effective participation, domain knowledge, compliance
with code of conduct, vision and strategy.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out an annual
performance evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation
of the working of its Audit, Nomination & Remuneration and other Committees.

16.2 Meetings:

The details of various meetings of the Board and its committees are in Corporate Governance
Report.

16.3 Committees of the Board:

The details of the various Committees constituted by the Board are given in Corporate Governance
Report.

17. FIXED DEPOSITS
During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any new fixed deposits from public.
18. INSURANCE:

The Building, Plant and Machinery and Stocks at all locations of the Company have been
adequately insured.

19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s
length basis and were in the ordinary course of business. There are no materially significant
related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the
Company at large.
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All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for approval as also the
Board for noting. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee and Board is being obtained on a
yearly basis for the transactions which are of a foreseen and repetitive nature. The transactions
entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted are audited and a statement giving
details of all related party transactions is placed before the Audit Committee and the Board of
Directors for their approval on a quarterly basis. The particulars of contracts entered during the
year as per Form AOC-2 is enclosed as Annexure “"B"”. Members may also refer to Annexure 1 to
the standalone financial statement which sets out related party disclosures pursuant to Ind AS.

Except Mr. Vasudeo Goenka, Mr. Ravi Goenka and Mr. Rajeev Goenka, none of the other Directors
have any pecuniary relationships or transactions vis-a-vis the Company.

20. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS REPORT:

M/s Natvarlal Vepari & Co., Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
Company at the 29™ Annual General Meeting of the Company for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive
years. In accordance with the Companies Amendment Act, 2017, ratification of M/s Natvarlal
Vepari & Co. is not required at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The notes on financial
statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further
comments. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or
disclaimer.

During the year under review, neither the Statutory Auditors nor the Secretarial Auditors have
reported to the Audit Committee under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, any instance
of fraud committee against the Company by its officers of employees, the details of which would
need to be mentioned in the Board Report.

21. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR:

The Board has appointed M/s GMJ & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, to conduct
Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2019-20. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year
ended 31 March 2019 is annexed herewith marked as Annexure “'C" to this Report.

22. COST AUDITORS:

Pursuant to the Order dated 30 June 2014 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), the
Board, cost accounting records maintained by the Company is subject to audit by qualified Cost
Auditors. Your company has appointed M/s. B.J.D. Nanabhoy & Company, a firm of Cost Auditors
for conducting the audit of such records and for preparing Compliance Report for the Financial Year
2019-20. The remuneration proposed to be paid to the Cost Auditor, subject to subject to
ratification by the shareholders of the Company at the ensuing 30" Annual General Meeting would
not exceed Rs. 148,000/- (excluding applicable taxes plus out of pocket expenses at actual, if

any)
23. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

Based on CSR policy adopted by the Board, the Company has taken various initiatives as part of its
CSR activities. The major focus is on promoting Education, Community Development, Health &
Sanitation and Skill Development etc. The Company has constituted a dedicated CSR Trust in the
name of Laxmi Foundation which was specifically formed by the Company to undertake CSR
Activities. For the financial year 2019-20 the Company through Laxmi Foundation is carrying need
assessment to locate the areas wherein the proper utilisation of CSR funds can be made.

Some of the major CSR activities undertaken by the Company is as under:
¢ The Company has continued the collaboration with Mahad Manufacturers Association (MMA)

whereby it is aiming to work jointly with MMA to impart employability skills to the people of
Mahad so as to help them shape up for the future and gain meaningful employment.



e The Company has continued a unique initiative of “Employee Volunteering” whereby the Sr.
Officers from the Company regularly visits the local schools and are imparting lectures &
sessions on the subjects which are not readily available to the Schools in terms of expertise.

The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed herewith as Annexure D"

24. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The information relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange
earnings and outgo as stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule, 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is annexed herewith as Annexure "E” and
forms part of this Report.

25. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is annexed herewith as
Annexure “F"”

26. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The Company being Unlisted Public Company, the disclosure requirement relating to Employees as
required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 (1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 2014, is not applicable. The information
required pursuant to Rule, 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company, will be provided upon request. In
terms of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the report and accounts are being sent to the
Members and others entitled thereto, excluding the information on employees’ particulars which is
available for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during business
hours on working days of the Company up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. If
any Member is interested in obtaining a copy thereof, such Member may write to the Company
Secretary in this regard.

27. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT:

In continuation of your Company’s efforts towards good corporate practices and transparency, a
Corporate Governance Report relating to the year under review is annexed as Annexure "G”
herewith and forms part of this Report.

In order to further promote the practices of the Corporate Governance, the Company is in process
of implementation of online Compliance Management System which shall monitor completion of all
the compliances which are applicable to the Company in real time basis..

28. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
obtained by them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of
the Companies Act, 2013:

1. that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019,
the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating
to material departures, if any;

2. that such accounting policies as mentioned in Note 2 of the Notes to the Financial Statements
have been selected and applied consistently and judgment and estimates have been made that
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2019 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that
date;

3. that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

4. that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;
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5. that proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were

adequate and were operating effectively.

6. that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and
were adequate and operating effectively.

29. GENERAL

The Board of Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following
items as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review:

1. Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company receive any
remuneration or commission from any of its subsidiaries.

3. No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which
impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

30. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for the continued cooperation and
support of the customers, suppliers, bankers and Government authorities. Your Directors also wish
to place on record their deep appreciation for the dedicated services rendered by the Company’s
executives, staff and workers.

By Order of the Board
For Laxmi Organic Industries Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Date :July 2, 2019 Vasudeo Goenka Ravi Goenka
Place : Mumbai Chairman Managing Director



ANNEXURE A :

SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATE /JOINT VENTURE
Form No. AOC-1

STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIALS OF

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part A: Subsidiaries

(in Rs. Lakhs)

1. Name of the LOBV CLPL ST VLPL LLPL LPMEF
Subsidiary Company
2. Financial Year ended on 31 March 31 March | 31 March | 31 March | 31 March 31 March
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
3. Reporting Currency EURO INR INR INR INR AED
4. Exchange Rate (in Rs.) 77.70 1 1 1 1 18.83
5. Capital 1568.03 1.00 878.47 1.00 1.00 6.40
6. Reserves 185.29 393.08 261.12 (0.80) (0.80) 78.60
7. Total Assets 7890.79 1092.51 2057.18 0.26 0.26 1662.19
8. Total Liabilities 6137.46 698.43 917.58 0.06 0.06 1577.19
9. Details of investment - - - - - -
10. Net Turnover 661.85 0.00 2949.55 0.00 0.00 11328.91
11. Profit before taxation 111.83 168.57 261.12 (0.13) (0.13) (337.16)
12. Provision for taxation 22.97 - - - - -
13. Profit after taxation 88.85 168.57 261.12 (0.13) (0.13) (337.16)
14. Proposed dividend - - - - - 6.40
15. % of Share Holding 100% 100% 95% 100% 100% 100%
16. Country of Netherland India India India India Dubai
Incorporation

From the above, CLPL, VLPL and LLPL are yet to commence the operations.

Part B: Associate & Joint Ventures

There are no associate or joint-venture companies of the Company at the financial year ended 31
March 2019. Hence, Part B of this annexure does not apply.

*LOBV: Laxmi Organic Industries (Europe) B.V.; CLPL: Cellbion Lifesciences Private Limited; SHL:
Suvas Holding Limited; ST: Saideep Traders; VLPL: Viva Lifesciences Private Limited; LLPL: Laxmi
Lifesciences Private Limited; LPMEF: Laxmi Petrochem Middle East FZE

Date : July 2, 2019
Place : Mumbai

By Order of the Board

For Laxmi Organic Industries Limited

Sd/-

Vasudeo
Chairman

Goenka

Sd/-

Ravi Goenka
Managing Director




ANNEXURE B :

Form No. AOC-2

Z

PARTICULARS OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso
thereto:

1.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended
31 March 2019 which are not at arm’s length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:
The details of the material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis for
the year ended 31 March 2019 are as follows:

(in Rs. Lakhs)
Name(s) of the Nature of | Duratio | Salient Date(s) | Amou | Date on
Related Party contracts | n of terms of | of nt which the
and Nature of Arrangem | contract | the approva | paid special
relation ents s/ contracts | | by the | as resolution
/transacti | arrange | or Board: advan | was passed
ons: ments/t | arrange ces, if | in general
ransacti | ments or any: meeting as
ons: transacti required
ons under first
including proviso to
the section 188:
value, if
any:
1 Laxmi Petrochem Sale & 01/04/18 2000.0 | 20/06/18 | NIL 24/09/2018
Middle East FZE Purchase till
2 Laxmi Organic of Goods, 31/03/19 17000.0 NIL
Industries Material &
(Europe) B.V. Services &
3 Saideep Traders Payment of 6000.0 NIL
Commissio
n
4 Harshvadhan Approval 01/04/18 208.3 | 06/05/20 | NIL 18/06/2018
Goenka for till 18
payment 31/03/19
of
Remunerat
ion

Date : July 2, 2019
Place : Mumbai

By Order of the Board
For Laxmi Organic Industries Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Ravi Goenka
Managing Director

Vasudeo Goenka
Chairman




ANNEXURE C: SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Form No.MR-3

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
(Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,

The Members,

LAXMI ORGANIC INDUSTRIES LIMITED

A-22/2/3, MIDC MAHAD

Raigarh, Mumbai - 402309

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by LAXMI ORGANIC INDUSTRIES
LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on 31 March 2019 complied with the statutory
provisions of the applicable Acts listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by LAXMI ORGANIC INDUSTRIES LIMITED for the financial year
ended on 31 March 2019 according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.
ii. The Companies Amendment Act, 2017 (to the extent notified).
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent applicable.
V. Secretarial Standards | and 11 including the revised Standards effective from October
1st, 2017 issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and
indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same has been subject to
review by statutory financial auditor and other designated professionals.

We report that based on the information provided and the Company, in our opinion, adequate
systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws general laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that:

e The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

e Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings and wherever
necessary consent for shorter notice was given by Directors, Board Committee Meetings,
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent well in advance and a system exists for



seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before

the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decisions are carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are
captured and recorded as part of Minutes.

We further report that:

1.

As

The Company has paid Remuneration to Managing Director and Whole Time Director
beyond the limit specified in Section Il Part Il of Schedule V of Companies Act, 2013,
however, the approval of Members for the same was obtained in Extra Ordinary General
Meeting held on June 18, 2018.

The Company has declared Final Dividend at the Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on September 24, 2018 and paid dividend to the Indian Shareholders within 30 days
from the date of declaration except in case of Non-Resident Shareholders where the
Company had made an application to State Bank of India (the Bank) within the 30 days
from the date of declaration of Dividend to issue Demand Drafts. However, due to delay
in processing by the Bank Demand Drafts were issued on November 5, 2018 and were
dispatched to the shareholders on November 13, 2018.

informed, the Company has responded appropriately to notices received from the

statutory / regulatory authorities including by taking corrective measures wherever found
necessary.

For GMJ & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries
[SONIA CHETTIAR]
PARTNER

ACS: 27582 COP: 10130
Place: Mumbai

Date: July 2, 2019

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘ANNEXURE
A’ and forms an integral part of this report.

To,

ANNEXURE A

The Members,

M/s. LAXMI ORGANIC INDUSTRIES LIMITED
A-22/2/3, MIDC MAHAD, Raigarh

Mumbai - 402309

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
books of accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.



The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules and
regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For GMJ & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

[SONIA CHETTIAR]
PARTNER

ACS: 27582 COP: 10130
Place: Mumbai

Date: July 2, 2019



@

ANNEXURE D: ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
ACTIVITIES
1.| A brief outline of the Company’s CSR | The CSR Activities at Company will be carried out by

Policy including overview of projects
or programs proposed to be
undertaken and a reference to the
web-link to the CSR Policy and
projects or programs.

the Company:

a. By Company directly

b. Laxmi Foundation, Company’s own CSR Trust

c. By Laxmidevi Nathmal Goenka Charitable Trust

d. In collaboration with other Companies
undertaking project in CSR activities.

e. Contributions/donations to Organizations

permitted under the applicable laws from time to
time

The Company has framed a CSR Policy in compliance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the same is placed on the Company’s website and the
web link for the same is
http://www.laxmi.com/about-us/csr.aspx

2.| Composition of CSR Committee Mr. Vasudeo Goenka (Chairman - Non-Independent)
Mr. Ravi Goenka (MD - Non-Independent)
Mr. Rajeev Goenka - (Director - Non-Independent)
Mr. Omprakash V. Bundellu - Independent Director
3.| Average net profit of the Company | Rs.8524.93 Lakhs
for last three financial years
4.| Prescribed CSR expenditure Rs.170.50 Lakhs
(two percent of the amount
mentioned in item 2 above)
5.| Details of CSR spent during the
financial year:
Total amount to be spent for the financial | Rs.326.57 Lakhs
year (Rs.170.50 Lakhs of FY 2018-19 + Unspent
Rs.156.07 Lakhs of FY 2017-18)
Amount unspent, if any NIL
Manner in which the amount spent Rs.326.57 Lakhs - Details given below
during the financial year
DETAILS OF AMOUNT SPENT ON CSR ACTIVITIES DURING THE FY 2018-19
Sr. CSR project Location Amount Amount Cumulativ Amount
No. or Activity Outlay spent e Spent
(Budget) on the Expenditur Direct
Project or | Projects e or
Program or upto the through
Wise Program reporting Agency
(Rs. in s period i.e.
Lakhs) (Rs. in FY 2018-
Lakhs) 2019
(Rs. in
Lakhs)
1 Providing Medical Aid Maharashtra 2.76 2.76 2.76 Directly
2 Promotion of Education Maharashtra 6.58 6.58 6.58 Directly
3 Community Maharashtra 1.98 1.98 1.98 Directly
Development Services
4 Laxmi Foundation | Maharashtra 207.00 207.00 207.00 Directly
(Corpus Fund)
5 Laxmidevi Nathmal | Maharashtra 108.25 108.25 108.25 Directly
Goenka Charitable Trust
(Corpus Fund)



http://www.laxmi.com/about-us/csr.aspx

| | Total | 326.57 | 326.57 | 326.57 |

6.| In case the Company has failed to spend | N.A.
the 2% of Average Net Profit of the last
3 financial years or any part thereof, the
Company shall provide the reason for
not spending the amount in Board’s
Report:

7.l The Responsibility Statement of the | The implementation and monitoring of Corporate
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) | Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy, is in compliance
Committee of the Board of Directors of | with CSR objectives and policy of the Company.

the Company, is reproduced below:

Sd/- Sd/-

Ravi Goenka Vasudeo Goenka
Managing Director Chairman - CSR Committee
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ANNEXURE E: CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN

EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of The Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of The
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Directors Report for the year ended 31
March 2019.

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

a) Efforts made for conservation of energy: -

1.

10.

Dedicated team has worked on to implementing various projects / initiatives relating to
Thermal and Electrical energy saving which led to reduction in Steam consumption.

Installation of Energy efficient Steam generator AFBC fluidized bed 33 TPH. Steam to fuel
ratio improved from 5.8 to 6.4 kg/kg. Steam cost reduction per MT from Rs. 1500 to
Rs.1150

Power consumption per MT of DK reduced from 2300 to 2150.

National energy conservation awareness programme conducted with various competitions
for period 14t™ Dec-18 to 20" Dec-18.

Utility Systems up-gradation (like Brine and cooling water system) were undertaken during
the year. Energy efficiency improvement was seen in each system.

Achieved an Energy efficiency improvement in cooling water systems to DK-Il plant.
Improvement in Tower effectiveness has increased from 47% to 55%.

Cogeneration power plant was utilized to achieve maximum output in the year. Specific
power generation per MT of steam is improved from 132 to 136 units.

The Company is using Energy efficient technologies for new projects design &
implementation.

Projects were also identified for further energy conservation in thermal and electrical
energy.

Awareness training was continuously being imparted to employees about need of energy
conservation.

b) Impact of above measures on consumption of energy: -

The Company expects more than 8 % reduction in energy consumption during the next year.

c) Capital investment on energy conservation equipment: - Rs. 2900 Lakhs.



d) Power & Fuel Consumption:

For Production of Ethyl Acetate & Diketene Derivative Products:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 2019 March 2018
1. Electricity
Unit KWH 60,304,774 53,531,265
Total Amount Rs. in Lakhs 4230.6
4459.9
Rate/Unit Rs./Unit 7.40 7.90
2. Coal
Quantity MT 88,490 79,597
Total Amount Rs. in Lakhs 5665.6 4751.5
Rate/Unit Rs./Mt. 6403 5969
3. C-9 Plus
Quantity MT 474 418
Total Amount Rs. in Lakhs 208.5 136.1
Rate/Unit Rs./Mt. 43952 32541
4. Bagasse
Quantity MT - 23
Total Amount Rs. in Lakhs - 0.8
Rate/Unit Rs./Mt. - 3596
1. Power generated from Alternative Energy Sources:
Generated by Wind Mills in:
a. Karnataka*
Total Units KWH 1,985,373 1,881,623
Value Rs. 7.17 6.38
b. Maharashtra*
Total Units KWH 1,870,541 1,987,556
Value Rs. 9.90 10.24

* The power generated was supplied to the State Electricity Utilities under PPAs.

II. CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION:

Major Products Year ended Year ended
March 2019 March 2018
I. Acetyls
(a) Electricity Kwh/Mt. 82 76
(b) Coal Kg/Mt. 0 18
(c) Steam (From CPP) Kg/Mt. 2405 2314
1. Speciality
(a) Electricity Kwh/Mt. 1531 1345
(b) Coal Kg/Mt. 758 816
I11. Special Denatured Spirit
(a) Molasses Kg/Ltr. 3814 4219




B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

(a) Research & Development:

@

Sr. No. Particulars Details
1. Major efforts made The company continues its efforts for new technologies in
towards technology the following areas:
absorption

> Process intensification:
Investments this year will yield benefits in the coming
years

» Product optimization:
Large impact commercial products are being reviewed
for improvements.

> New product development:
We are developing new intermediates for the life
science, crop science and pigment industry.

Benefits derived as a
result of the above R&D

Creation of new technology platforms, giving the company
access to more opportunities.

Information regarding
imported technology
(Imported during last
three years)

- N.A. -

The Company has incurred following expenditure on Research & Development.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars March 2019 March 2018
a) Capital 80.3 584.5
b) Recurring 178.1 206.8
Total (a + b) 258.4 791.3
Total R&D Expenditure as % of Total Turnover 0.62%

(b) Technology Absorption, Adoption & Innovation: NIL

(c) Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo:

(Rs._in Lakhs)
Particulars March 2019 March 2018

Foreign Exchange Earnings (In flow) 39717.6 27303.4
Foreign Exchange (Out go)
a. Chemicals 74908.4 67847.9
b. Capital Goods 210.6 161.2
c. Expenses 1125.8 3917.8

By Order of the Board

FOR LAXMI ORGANIC INDUSTRIES

LIMITED

Sd/- Sd/-

Date : July 2, 2019
Place : Mumbai

Ravi Goenka
Managing Director

Vasudeo Goenka
Chairman




ANNEXURE F :

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended 31 March 2019
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 12(1)
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

FORM NO. MGT-9

1. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

Corporate Identity Number

U24200MH1989PLC051736

Registration Date

15-May-1989

Name of the Company

Laxmi Organic Industries Limited

Category/Sub-category of the Company

Company having Share Capital

Address of Registered Office and contact details

A-22/2/3, MIDC, Mahad Industrial Area, Dist.
Raigad - 402309

T +91-2145-232424/232

F +91-2145-232203

http://www.laxmi.com/

Whether Listed Company

No

Name, address and contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Link Intime India Private Limited

C 101, 247 Park, L.B.S.Marg, Vikhroli (West),
Mumbai - 400 083

Tel: 4918 6270 Fax: 4918 6060

Email: mumbai@linkintime.co.in

II1.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY OF THE COMPANY:

All the Business Activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover

stated:

of the Company shall be

Name & Description of
Product/Service

NIC Code of the Product/Service*

%o of total Turnover#

Ethyl Acetate

Acetic Anhydride fertilizers and

forms

201-Manufacture of basic chemicals,

plastic and synthetic rubber in primary

56.42

nitrogen compounds, 11.64

* As per National Industrial Classification — Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation

# On the basis of Gross Turnover

II11.

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

Name & Address

CIN/GLN

Holding/
Subsidiary/
Associate

% of
share
held

Applicable
Section

1 | Laxmi Organic Industries
(Europe) BV
Schipholweg 87, 2316 ZL
Leiden, The Netherlands

Foreign Company

Subsidiary 100 2(87)

2 | Laxmi Petrochem Middle
East FZE

E-58G-12, Hamriyah Free
Zone, Sharjah, UAE

Foreign Company

Subsidiary 100 2(87)

Cellbion Lifesciences Pvt.
Ltd. Chandermukhi
Basement, Nariman Point,
Mumbai - 400021

U24233MH2007PTC170041

Subsidiary 100 2(87)

Laxmi Lifesciences Pvt.
Ltd.

3rd Floor, Chandermukhi
Bldg., Nariman Point,
Mumbai - 400021

U24233MH2013PTC245224

Subsidiary 100 2(87)

Viva Lifesciences Pvt. Ltd.
3" Floor, Chandermukhi
Bldg., Nariman Point,
Mumbai - 400021

U24100MH2013PTC245226

Subsidiary 100 2(87)

Saideep Traders
C/o The Quality Iron &
Steel Works Pvt. Ltd.,

Partnership Firm

Subsidiary 95% 2(87)



http://www.laxmi.com/
mailto:mumbai@linkintime.co.in
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413/1, Gadmudshingi,
Ghandhinagar Road, M. B.
Lohia Industrial Estate,
Kolhapur — 416119.

IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN:
i) Category-wise Shareholding
Category of No of Share held at the beginning of No of Share held at the end of %
Shareholder the year the year chan
Demat Physic | Total % Demat | Phys | Total % of ge
al of ical Total | duri
Tota ng
| the
year
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a. Individual/HU 462,535 | 13,000 475,535 | 4.75 | 24,40,1 - | 24,40,1 488 | +0.1
F 75 75 3
b. Central Govt. - - - - - -
c. State Govt(s) - - - - - -
d. Bodies Corp 188,000 188,000 | 1.88 | 940,00 - | 940,00 1.88 -
- 0 0
e. Banks/Fls - - -
f. Any Other 8,037,224 8,037,224 | 80.3 80.30
(Trust) - - - 0| 4,01,86 - | 4,01,86 -
,120 ,120
Sub-total | 8,687,759 | 13,00 | 8,700,75 | 86.9 | 4,35,6 -| 435,6 | 87.05| +0.1
(A)(1) 0 9 3 6,295 6,295 3
(2) Foreign
a. NRI- } ) }
Individual - - - - - -
b. Others B _ B
c. Bodies Corp B _ B
d. Banks/Fls _ _ _
e. Any Other _ _ _
Sub-total _ ) B
(A)(2) - - - - - -
Total Promoter | 8,687,759 13,00 | 8,700,75 | 86.9 | 4,35,6 -| 4,35,6 | 87.05 | +0.1
Shareholding 0 9 3 6,295 6,295 3
(A) =
(A)(1)+(A)(2)
B. Public
Shareholdin
g
1. Institutional
a. Mutual Fund - - - - B
b. Banks/Fls - - - - _
c. Central Govt. - - - - _
d. State - - - - _
Govt(s). - - - -
e. Venture - - - - -




Capital Fund - - - -
f. Insurance - - - -
Companies - - - } -
g. FliIs - - - -
h. Foreign
Venture - 1,005, 1.005.802 10'2 50’291’8 - 50’29i8 10.05 -
Capital Fund 802 ’ ’
i. Others
Sub-total
(B)(1) - | 1,005, | 1,005,80 | 10-0| 50:29, - | 5029, | 14 45 ;
5 010 010
802 2
2. Non-
institutions
a. Bodies Corp
i. Indian ~
ii. Overseas _
b. Individuals
i. holding shares 0.26 | 10,050 2,50 | 12,550 | 0.025 -
upto Rs.1 Lacs 10 | 26,500 26,510 0 0.23
5
ii. holding shares - 2.76 | 11,50,0 287, | 14,37,5 2.87 | +0.1
more than Rs.1 276,01 276,010 40 510 50 1
Lacs 0
iii. Others - - - - - - -
Sub-total 3.02| 11,60, | 290, | 14,50, 2.90 | -0.12
(B)(2) 10 | 302,5 302,520 090 010 100
10
Total Public 13.0| 61,89, | 290, | 64,79, -0.12
Shareholding 10 | 1,308, | 1,308,32 7 100 010 110 | 12.95
(B) = 312 2
(B)(1)+(B)(2)
C. Shares held - -
by - -
custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs
Total (A+B+C) 100 | 4,97,5 | 290, | 5,00,4 100
8,362,269 | 1,646, | 10,009,0 5,395 010 5,405
812 81
i) Shareholding of Promoters
Sr | Shareholder’'s Name No of Share held at the No of Share held at the %
. beginning of the year end of the year chang
N No. of % of % of No. of % of % of e
o. Shares | Share | Shares Shares Shar | Shares | during
s Pledge es Pledge the
d d year
1 | Vasudeo Goenka 5 0.00 - 25 0.00 -
2 | Ravi Goenka 5 0.00 - 31,275 0.06 - +0.06
3 | Rajeev Goenka 5 0.00 - 96,275 0.19 - +0.19
4 | Manisha Goenka 5 0.00 - 25 0.00 - -
5 | Harshvardhan Goenka 5 0.00 - 25 0.00 - -
6 | Ravi Goenka HUF 425000 4.25 - | 21,25,00 4.25 - -
0
7 | Niharika Goenka 5 0.00 - 25 0.00 - -
8 | Aditi Goenka 5 0.00 - 25 0.00 - -
9 | Rajeev & Manisha 13000 0.13 - - - - -0.13
Goenka




10 | Aryavrat Goenka 37500 0.37 187,500 0.37 - -
11 | Brady Investments 188,000 1.88 940,000 1.88 - -
Pvt. Ltd.
12 | Ravi Goenka as 8,037,22 | 80.30 4,01,86, | 80.30 - -
Trustee of Yellow 4 120
Stone Trust
Total | 8,700,7 4,35,66, | 87.0 +0.12
59 | 86.93 - 295 5
ifi) Change in Shareholding of Promoters
Sr. | Particulars Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding during
No. of the year the year
No. of Shares % of No. of Shares % of
Shares Shares
1 | Atthe 87,00,759 86.93 87,00,759 86.93
Beginning of
the year
2 30-01-2019 12,500 - 87,13,259 87.05
(Transmission
of Shares)
3 30-01-2019 3,48,53,036 - 4,35,66,295 87.05
(Bonus issue)
4 | At the end of 4,35,66,295 87.05 4,35,66,295 87.05
year
iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors/Promoters
and holder of GDRs and ADRs)
Sr. | Name of Shareholder Shareholding at the Shareholding at the end of
No. beginning of the year the year
No. of % of Shares No. of % of Shares
Shares Shares
1. International Finance
Corporation (Washington
DC) 1,005,802 10.05 50,29,010 10.05
2. Mrs. Hansa K. Agarwal &
Mr. Kailash Agarwal
(Bahrain) 192,000 1.92 960,000 1.92
3. Mrs. Suman Mishra (US) 50,000 0.50 250,000 0.50
4.
Mr. Nilesh Ruparel (UK) 12,500 0.12 - -
5.
Mr. Vishwas Kunte 11,500 0.11 57,500 0.11
6. Mr. Vishwas Kunte & Mrs.
Aparna V. Kunte 10,000 0.10 50,000 0.10
7. Mr. Arun Keshav Dudhane 4,000 0.04 20,000 0.04
8. Mr. Satwik Mishra 2,500 0.02 12,500 0.02
9. 12,500
Ms. Sukriti Mishra 2,500 0.02 0.02
10. | Mrs. Meenu Satyakam 12,500
Mishra 2,500 0.02 0.02
11. 12,500
Mr. Satyakam Mishra 2,500 0.02 0.02
V) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Sr. | Particulars . Cumulative
No. Shareholding at the Shareholding during

beginning of the year

the year
No. of % of No. of % of
Shares Shares Shares Shares




2
=

Vasudeo Goenka, Chairman

1 At the Beginning of the year 5 0.00 5 0.00
2 30/01/2019 | Bonus issue 20 - 25 0.00
3 At the end of year 25 0.00 25 0.00
Mr. Ravi Goenka, Managing Director
1 At the Beginning of the year 5 0.00 5 0.00
2 30/01/2019 Transmission 6,250 - 6,255 0.06
3 30/01/2019 Bonus 25,020 - 31,275 0.06
4 | At the end of year 31,275 0.06 31,275 0.06
Mr. Rajeev Goenka, Managing Director
1 At the Beginning of the year 5 0.00 5 0.00
2 20/06/2018 Transfer 13,000 - 13,005 0.13
3 30/01/2019 Transmission 6,250 - 19,255 0.19
4 30/01/2019 Bonus 77,020 - 96,275 0.19
5 | At the end of year 96,275 0.19 96,275 0.19
Mr. Desh Verma, Director
1 At the Beginning of the year 10,010 0.10 10,010 0.10
2 30/01/2019 | Bonus 40,040 - 50,050 0.10
3 | At the end of year 50,050 0.10 50,050 0.10
Mr. Omprakash V. Bundellu, Independent Director
1 At the Beginning of the year - - - -
2 No Transaction - - - -
3 At the end of year - - - -
Mr. Manish Chokhani, Independent Director
1 At the Beginning of the year - - - -
2 No Transaction - - - -
3 At the end of year - - - -
Mr. Radhesh Welling, Executive Director cum CEO
1 At the Beginning of the year - - - -
2 No Transaction - - - -
3 At the end of year - - - -
Ms. Sangeeta Singh, Independent Director
1 At the Beginning of the year - - - -
2 No Transaction - - - -
3 At the end of year - - - -
Mr. Partha Roy Chowdhury, Chief Finance Officer
1 At the Beginning of the year - - - -
2 No Transaction - - - -
3 At the end of year - - - -
Mr. Aniket Hirpara, Company Secretary and General Manager (Legal)
1 At the Beginning of the year - - - -
2 No Transaction - - - -
3 At the end of year - - - -
V. INDEBTEDNESS:
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for
payment
Particulars Secured Loan Unsecured Deposits Total
(Rs. in Mn) Loan (Rs. in Mn) (Rs. in Mn)
(Rs. in Mn)
Indebtedness at the
beginning of the FY
I | Principal Amount 1,902.49 39.79 - 1,942.28
li | Interest due but not paid 9.49 - - 9.49
lii | Interest accrued but not
due 2.51 - - 2.51
Total 1,914.49 39.79 - 1,954.28
Change in indebtedness
during the FY
A | Addition 454.46 100.00 - 554.46
B | Deletion 1077.52 11.24 - 1088.77
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C | Exchange Difference 20.11 - - 20.11
Net Change (643.17) 88.76 - 554.41
Indebtedness at the end
of the FY
I | Principal Amount 1259.31 128.55 - 1387.86
li | Interest due but not paid 13.05 0.063 - 13.11
lii | Interest accrued but not
due - - - -
Total 1272.36 128.61 - 1400.97

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Director (Rs. in Lakhs)
Sr. Particulars Mr. Ravi Mr. Radhesh Total
No Goenka, Welling,
Managing Executive
Director Director cum
CEO*
1 Gross Salary
a. Salary as per provisions contained in 363.10 198.01 561.11
Section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
b. Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) of 54.85 - 54.85
the Income Tax Act, 1961
c. Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) - - -
of the Income Tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - -
4 Commission - - -
As % of Profits - - -
Others, Specify - - -
5 Others, Specify (One Time Performance Bonus) 500.00 - 500.00
Total - (A) 917.95 198.01 1115.96

Ceiling as per Act

Rs. 1073.39 Lakhs (being 10% of the net
profits of the Company calculated as per
Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013). As
required under proviso to section 197(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
obtained requisite approval of members by
passing Special Resolution at the Extra
Ordinary General Meeting held on
22/06/2019, for making excess payment of
remuneration, in case if any, beyond the
beyond the limit specified in Section Il Part Il
of Schedule V.

B. Remuneration to Other Directors

Independent Directors

Sr. Particulars Mr. Mr. Ms. Total
No Omprakash Manish Sangeeta
V. Bundellu Chokhani Singh
1 Fees for attending Board/Committee 2.60 2.40 1.20 6.20
Meetings
2 Commission 12.50 10.00 8.75 31.25
3 | Others, Specify - - - -
Total - (1) i15.10 12.40 9.95 37.45

2. Other Non-executive Directors




Date : July 2, 2019

P

lace : Mumbai

Sr. Particulars Mr. Vasudeo Mr. Mr. Total
No Goenka Rajeev Desh
Goenka Verma
1 | Fees for attending Board/Committee 1.60 0.80 1.00 3.40
Meetings
2 | Commission - - 5.25 5.25
3 | Others, Specify - - - -
Total - (1) 1.60 0.80 6.25 8.65
C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD (Rs. in
Lakhs)
Sr. Particulars Mr. Partha Mr. Aniket Total
No Roy Hirpara,
Chowdhury, Company
CFO Secretary &
General
Manager
(Legal)
1 | Gross Salary
d. Salary as per provisions contained in 102.58 34.71 137.29
Section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act,
1961
e. Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) - - -
of the Income Tax Act, 1961
f. Profits in lieu of salary under Section - - -
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
2 | Stock Option - - -
3 | Sweat Equity - - -
4 Commission - - -
As % of Profits - - -
Others, Specify - - -
5 Others, Specify - - -
Total - (A) 102.58 34.71 137.29
VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Appeal
the Description Penalties/ (RD/NCLT/ | made, if any
Companies Punishment Court) (give
Act /Compounding Details)
fees imposed
A. Company:
Penalty
Punishment None
Compounding
B. Director:
Penalty
Punishment None
Compounding
C. Other Officers in Default:
Penalty
Punishment None
Compounding
By Order of the Board
FOR LAXMI ORGANIC INDUSTRIES
LIMITED
Sd/- Sd/-

Ravi Goenka
Managing Director

Vasudeo Goenka
Chairman
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NNEXURE G: CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY'’S PHILOSOPHY:

The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is ‘To Attain Right Results Through Right
Means’ by conducting business in the most efficient, responsible, honest, transparent and ethical
manner. Corporate Governance goes beyond compliance and it involves companywide
commitment. This commitment starts with Board of Directors, which executes its corporate
governance responsibilities by focusing on the Company’s strategic and operational excellence in
the best interest of all its stakeholders. The Board has adopted a Board charter spelling out the
role and responsibilities of the Board.

The Company believes that sound corporate practices based on transparency, accountability and
high level of integrity in the functioning of the Company is essential for the long term
enhancement of the shareholders/stakeholders value and interest. It encompasses achieving the
balance between shareholders’ interest and corporate goals through the efficient conduct of its
business and meeting its stakeholder obligations. Corporate Governance is about commitment to
values and about the ethical business conduct.

Our endeavour is to adopt the best governance and disclosure practice by providing the timely and
accurate information regarding the financial situation, performance, ownership and governance of
the Company. We believe that the good Corporate Governance practices, is a key driver to
sustainable corporate growth and long-term value creation for the shareholders/stakeholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

a) Composition:

The Board of Directors includes the Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors so
as to ensure proper governance and management.

The total strength of your Board comprises of Seven (7) Directors, which consists of One (1)
Managing Director, Three (3) Independent Directors and Three (3) Non-Executive Directors.

Mr. Vasudeo N. Goenka, Non-Executive Director is a founder promoter under whose
chairmanship the rest of the Board is functioning. Mr. Ravi V. Goenka is a Managing Director
of the Company, who is involved in the day-to-day management of the Company, subject to
the supervision and control of the Board of Directors.

The Independent Directors on the Board are professionals, who are senior, competent and
highly respected persons in marketing, finance and banking.

No. of No. Of Outside
Outside Committee Positions
Directors Category Directorship
as on Member | Chairman
31/03/2019
Mr. Vasudeo N. Goenka Non-Executive 19 - -
Chairman
Mr. Ravi V. Goenka Managing Director 19 - -
Mr. Rajeev V. Goenka Non-executive 20 - -
Director
Mr. Desh Verma Non-Executive 6 - -
Director
Mr. Omprakash V. Bundellu Independent 1 0 1
Director
Mr. Manish Chokhani Independent 8 11 0
Director
Ms. Sangeeta Singh Woman Director 8 - -




Meetings:

The following table gives the details of Directors and their attendance in Board and General
meetings held during the year ended March 31, 2019:

Directors Attendance in Board Meetings during 2018-19 Pr:‘(’;;us
20/06/ | 23/08/1 | 15/11/ | 30/01/
06/05/18 18 8 18 19

Mr. Vasudeo N. Goenka Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Ravi V. Goenka Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Rajeev V. Goenka Yes Yes LOA Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Radhesh Welling Yes Yes Yes Yes N.A.* Yes
Mr. Desh Verma Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Omprakash V. Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Bundellu

Mr. Manish Chokhani Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No
Ms. Sangeeta Singh Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No

*Resigned w.e.f. 15 November 2018

COMMITTEES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The following are the Committees of the Board:

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Mandatory Committee as per Companies Act, 2013 “the Act”):

a)

Constitution and Responsibility:

The Audit Committee has been entrusted with all the required authority and powers to play
an effective role as envisaged under Section 177 of the Act. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are as under:

Authority:

1.

The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to:

(a) investigate any activity within its terms of reference;

(b) seek any information that it properly requires from any employee of the Company or
any associate or subsidiary, joint venture Company in order to perform its duties and
all employees are directed by the Board to co-operate with any request made by the
Audit Committee; and

(c) call any director or other employee to be present at a meeting of the Audit
Committee as and when required.

To obtain appropriate external advice to assist it in the performance of its duties and to
secure the services of outsiders with relevant experience and expertise and to invite
those persons to attend at meetings of the Audit Committee.

Roles & Responsibility:

1.

To recommend for the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment and scope
of work of auditors of the Company viz. Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors, Cost
Auditors, Tax Auditors, Secretarial Auditor.

To review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of
audit process.

To examine the financial statement (Annual, Half Yearly/Quarterly) and the auditors’
report thereon, with particular reference to:

a. Matters that is required to be included in the Directors' Responsibility Statement to
be included in the Directors' Report in terms of sub-section (2AA) of Section 217 of
the Companies Act, 1956.




b)

c)

@

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
the management.

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.

e. Compliance with other legal requirements relating to financial statements.

f. Disclosure of related party transactions.

g. Qualifications in draft audit report.

4. To approve or subsequently modify the transactions of the Company with related parties.

5. To scrutiny the inter-corporate loans and investments.

6. To carry out valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is
necessary.

7. To carry out evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.

8. To monitor the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters

9. To establish vigil mechanism for directors and employees.

10. To discuss audit, control and risk issues with Statutory and Internal Auditors

11. To call for comments and deliberate with the auditors about internal control systems,
scope of audit including the observations of the auditors and review of the financial
statements before submission to the Board.

12. To investigate into any matter in relation to the items specified above or referred to it by
the Board and for this purpose to have power to obtain professional advice from external
sources and have full access to information contained in the records of the Company.

13. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the Internal Auditors into matters
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a
material nature and reporting the matter to the Board (Vigil Mechanism).

14. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e. the whole-time Finance Director or any other
person heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the
qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate.

15. To carry out such other functions as may be specifically referred to the Committee by the
Board of Directors and/or other Committees of Directors of the Company.

16. To make available its terms of reference and review annually those terms of reference
and its own effectiveness and recommend any necessary changes to the Board.

Composition:

The Audit Committee presently comprises of three (3) Directors viz. Mr. Omprakash V.
Bundellu, Mr. Manish Chokhani and Mr. Ravi Goenka.

Mr.

Omprakash V. Bundellu is the Chairman of the present Audit Committee.

Meetings:

The Audit Committee met five times during the year and the following table gives the details
of members and their attendance in Audit Committee meetings held during the year ended
March 31, 2019:

Members Audit Committee Meetings during
2017-18

06/05/1 | 20/06/1 | 23/08/1 | 15/11/1 | 30/01/1
8 8 8 8 9




Mr. Omprakash V. Bundellu Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Manish Chokhani Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Ravi Goenka N.A.* N.A.* N.A.* N.A.* Present
Mr. Radhesh Welling Yes Yes Yes Yes No**

*Inducted as member of the Audit Committee from the meeting held on 30 January 2019
**Resigned w.e.f. 15 November 2018

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC) (Mandatory Committee as per Act):

a)

Constitution and Responsibility:

The NRC has been entrusted with all the required authority and powers to play an effective
role as envisaged under Section 178 of the Act. The terms of reference of the NRC are as
under:

Authority:

1. The Committee is authorised by the Board to:

(a) investigate any activity within its terms of reference;

(b) seek any information that it properly requires from any employee of the Company or
any associate or subsidiary, joint venture Company in order to perform its duties and
all employees are directed by the Board to co-operate with any request made by the
NRC; and

(c) call any director or other employee to be present at a meeting of the NRC as and
when required.

2. To obtain appropriate external advice to assist it in the performance of its duties and to
secure the services of outsiders with relevant experience and expertise and to invite
those persons to attend at meetings of the NRC.

Roles & Responsibility:

I. Nomination:

1. To be responsible for identifying and nominating, for the approval of the Board and
ultimately the shareholders, candidates to fill Board vacancies as and when they arise
as well as putting in place plans for succession, in particular with respect to the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer.

2. To review regularly the Board structure, size, composition and make
recommendations to the Board of adjustments that are deemed necessary, in order
to ensure an adequate size and a well-balanced composition of the Board and further
to make determinations regarding independence of members of the Board;

3. To consider succession and emergency planning, taking into account the challenges
and opportunities facing the Company and the skills and expertise therefore needed
on the Board, reporting to the Board regularly

4. To keep under review the leadership needs of the organisation, both executive and
non-executive, with a view to ensuring the continued ability of the Company to
compete effectively in the market place.

5. Annual performance evaluation of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman in their
respective offices and all Directors including Managing and other Executive Director
with respect to their roles as Directors.

6. To ensure that on appointment to the Board, Non-executive Directors receive a
formal letter of appointment setting out clearly what is expected of them in terms of
time commitment, committee service and involvement outside Board meetings

7. To recommend to the Board whether to reappoint a Director at the end of their term
of office



b)

c)

10.

11.

12.

13.

&
To make recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the
continuation in office of any Director at any time including the suspension or

termination of service of an executive Director as an employee of the Company
subject to the provision of the law and their service contract

To identify and recommend Directors who are to be put forward for retirement by
rotation

Before appointment is made by the Board, to evaluate the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience on the Board, and in the light of this evaluation prepare a
description of the role and capabilities required for a particular appointment.

To ensure the development of guidelines for selecting candidates for election or re-
election to the Board, or to fill vacancies on the Board

To consider any other matters as may be requested by the Board; and
To make available its terms of reference and review annually those terms of

reference and its own effectiveness and recommend any necessary changes to the
Board.

II. Remuneration:

1. To consider and determine, based on their performance and such other factors as the
Committee shall deem appropriate all elements of the remuneration of the members
of the Board and the Key Managerial Personnel, namely,

(i) base salary (the Committee shall also consider the pension consequences of basic
salary increases);

(ii) bonuses and performance-related payments (including profit-sharing schemes);

(iii) discretionary payments;

(iv) pension contributions;

(v) benefits in kind; and

(vi) share options and their equivalents

2. To approve the remuneration of other members of the senior management of the
Company;

3. Be exclusively responsible for establishing the selection criteria, selecting, appointing
and setting the terms of reference for any remuneration consultants who advise the
Committee and considering any other connection that they may have with the
Company;

4. In relation to the above, the Committee shall at all times give due regard to
published or other available information relating to pay, bonuses and other benefits
of executives in companies which are comparable to the Company;

5. To consider any other matters as may be requested by the Board; and

6. To make available its terms of reference and review annually those terms of
reference and its own effectiveness and recommend any necessary changes to the
Board.

Composition:

The NRC presently comprises of four (4) Directors viz. Mr. Manish Chokhani, being the
Chairman of the Committee and Mr. Omprakash V. Bundellu, Ms. Sangeeta Singh & Mr.
Vasudeo Goenka as members.

Meetings:



The NRC met twice during the year on 6 May 2018 and 5 November 2018 and all the members
have attended the same.

In addition to the NRC meetings as above, as per the requirement of section 149(8) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Code for Independent Directors, the Company has convened a
separate meeting consisting only of Independent Directors on May 18, 2017 whereby the
Independent Directors have reviewed the following matters:

a. Review of performance of Non-independent Directors;

b. Review of Performance of Chairperson of the Company;

c. To assess quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company,
Management and Board;

d. Any reporting of deviation in the ethical or governance issues;

e. Any reporting of insider trading issues;

f. Any reporting on critical whistle blower incident

This meeting was required to be called once in a year as per the Companies Act, 2013 and to
be attended by both the Independent Directors. Non-independent Directors including the
Company Secretary have not participated in this meeting. The Minutes of the Meeting were
prepared by the Independent Directors and was kept confidential under the custody of
Independent Directors as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE (Mandatory Committee as per

Act):

a)

b)

Constitution and Responsibility:

The CSR Committee has been entrusted with all the required authority and powers to play an
effective role as envisaged under Section 135 of the Act. The terms of reference of the NRC
are as under:

Authority:
1. The CSR Committee is authorised by the Board to:

(a) investigate any activity within its terms of reference;

(b) seek any information that it properly requires from any employee of the Company or
any associate or subsidiary, joint venture Company in order to perform its duties and
all employees are directed by the Board to co-operate with any request made by the
CSR Committee; and

2. To obtain appropriate external advice to assist it in the performance of its duties and to
secure the services of outsiders with relevant experience and expertise and to invite
those persons to attend at meetings of the CSR Committee.

Roles & Responsibility:

1. To formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which
shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the company as specified in Schedule VII
of the Act as well as under point J (CSR Scope) of this Terms of Reference;

2. To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in
clause 1 above; and

3. To monitor, review, revise and update the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the
company from time to time.

4. To define and institute a transparent monitoring mechanism for implementation of the
CSR activities.

Composition:

The CSR Committee presently comprises of four (4) Directors viz. Mr. Vasudeo Goenka, being
the Chairman of the Committee, Mr. Ravi Goenka, Mr. Rajeev Goenka, and Mr. Omprakash V.
Bundellu as members.
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The NRC met once during the year on 27/03/2019 and all the members have attended the
same.

Meetings:

FINANCE COMMITTEE:

a)

Constitution and Responsibility:

The Board has constituted the Finance Committee which looks at all matters relating to
interest rate risk/FX risks/bank limits utilizations etc. This Committee is not mandatory as
per the requirements of the New Companies Act, 2013, however in order to manage the risk
on financial matter and to monitor and mitigate Forex and Interest Risks, the Board has
constituted this Finance Committee. The Finance Committee, as a risk mitigating, measures
on FX risks and the Finance Committee monitors the hedge ratio of the FX exposure in
EUR/USD from time to time and provide guidance. The Finance Committee also take note of
the various economic factors and interest rate movement in the market and after
deliberations gives guidance on the interest rate risk measures and the bank limits are
accordingly monitored from time to time. The terms of reference of the Finance Committee
are as under:

Authority:
1. The Finance Committee is authorised by the Board to:

(a) investigate any activity within its terms of reference;

(b) seek any information that it properly requires from any employee of the Company or
any associate or subsidiary, joint venture Company in order to perform its duties and
all employees are directed by the Board to co-operate with any request made by the
Finance Committee; and

(c) call any director or other employee to be present at a meeting of the Finance
Committee as and when required.

2. To obtain appropriate external advice to assist it in the performance of its duties and to
secure the services of outsiders with relevant experience and expertise and to invite
those persons to attend at meetings of the Finance Committee.

Delegated Powers:

1. To identify Forex Risks (i.e. Foreign Exchange fluctuation risk, interest rate risk),
Financial Risks and other Business Risks and suggest/implement mitigating measures to
address the same.

2. To open/close bank accounts (current, cash credit, saving, fixed & recurring deposits,
derivative trading etc.) and to avail various other incidental banking facilities (inter-
changeability, net banking, phone banking etc.) offered by the Bank.

3. To approve and undertake an expenditure of general nature up to a maximum limit of Rs.
3.00crore and to borrow money, if required from banks/financial institutions in this
regard.

4. To approve and undertake expenditure of capital nature up to a maximum limit of Rs.
5.00 crore and to borrow money, if required from banks/financial institutions in this
regard.

5. To approve any additional bank facility for working capital purpose and to accept,
acknowledge and sign on behalf of the Board the sanction/facility letters of any amount,
issued by Bankers/Financial Institutions in this regard.

6. To invest the funds of the company up to a maximum limit of Rs.10.00 crore.



7. To grant loans or give guarantee or provide security in respect of loans obtained by the
company, subsidiary company, associate company, joint venture up to a maximum limit
of Rs.50.00 crore.

8. To authorise any officer of the Company for the following matters:

a.

b.

To acquire any movable and immovable assets (property) on Leave & License,
Lease or Hire Purchase basis.

To deal with and execute various papers, deeds, agreements and documents with
various Departments, Statutory or Local Bodies of the Central or State
Government.

9. To authorise the employees/officers to handle and deal in legal matters, if any on behalf
of the Company.

b) Composition:

The Finance Committee presently comprises three (3) members viz. Mr. Omprakash V.
Bundellu, as the Chairman of the Committee and Mr. Ravi Goenka and Mr. Partha Roy
Chowdhury as members.

c) Meetings:

The Finance Committee met four (4) times during the year and the following table gives the
details of members and their attendance in Finance Committee meetings held during the year
ended March 31, 2019:

Members Finance Committee Meetings during 2018-19
Held Attended
Mr. Omprakash V. Bundellu 4 4
Mr. Ravi Goenka 4 4
Mr. Radhesh Welling 4 3*

*Resigned as executive Director and CEO w.e.f. 15 November 2018

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS:

a. The following table gives the details of the last three Annual General Meetings of the Company

held:
Year Day, Date and Time Location

2017-18 Monday, September 24, 2018 At 12.00 Noon

(29t AGM) Y, oep : : A-22/2/3, MIDC,
2016-17 . Mahad Industrial

(28" AGM) Friday, September 29, 2017 At 12.00 Noon Area, Dist. Raigad
2015-16 402309

(27" AGM) Thursday, September 29, 2016 At 12.00 Noon

b. The following are the special business transacted at the Annual General Meetings held in last

three years:

Meeting Subject matter of Special Resolution

2017-18 1.

(29t AGM)

2.

o0k

Authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to borrow in excess of limit
specified u/s 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013

Authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to create charge / mortgage on
the movable and immovable assets of the Company both present and future u/s
180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013

Approval for increase in authorized share capital of the Company and subsequent
alteration to Memorandum of Association

Approval to alter Articles of Association of the Company

Approval to issue bonus shares

Approval for related Party Transactions to be undertaken by the Company during
FY 2018-19

2016-17
(28t AGM)

el o

Approval of remuneration to be paid to Cost Auditor

Appointment of Ms. Sangeeta Singh as Independent Director
Approval for revision in remuneration of Mr. Harshvardhan Goenka
Approval for revision in remuneration of Mr. Ravi Goenka




5. Approval for revision in remuneration of Mr. Radhesh Welling
6. Approval for related Party Transactions to be undertaken by the Company during
FY 2017-18

2015-16 1. Approval of remuneration to be paid to Cost Auditor
(27t AGM) | 2. Approval for related Party Transactions to be undertaken by the Company during
FY 2016-17
3. Approval for revision in remuneration of Mr. Harshvardhan Goenka

EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING:

The Company has convened an Extraordinary General Meeting on 18 June 2018 to obtain the
approval of the Members for the revision in payment of remuneration of Mr. Ravi Goenka, Mr.
Radhesh Welling and Mr. Harshvardhan Goenka.

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARE:

The Company has obtained electronic connectivity of National Securities Depository Limited
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) to facilitate the members to hold
their shares in demat mode. Accordingly, the members may now convert their physical share
certificate into demat mode. The member may refer the following information while initiating the
demat process:

ISIN Number : INE576001012

Details of Share Transfer Agent : Link Intime India Private Limited
C 101, 247 Park, L.B.S.Marg, Vikhroli (West),
Mumbai - 400 083
Email: Mumbai@linkintime.co.in

COMPANY IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (CIN):

All the forms, returns, balance sheets and other documents filed with the Registrar of Companies
(the *ROC’) are available for inspection at the official website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs at
www.mca.gov.in under the Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U24200MH1989PLC051736

SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION:
Day, Date and Time of AGM :  Thursday, September 5, 2019 at 12.00 NOON

Venue :  A-22/2/3, MIDC, Mahad Industrial Area,
Dist. Raigad - 402309

Financial Year : April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019

Record Date :  Thursday, September 5, 2019

Registered office : A-22/2/3, MIDC, Mahad Industrial Area,
Dist. Raigad - 402309

Compliance officer : Aniket Hirpara, Company Secretary

E-mail Address i aniket.hirpara@laxmi.com

Website address ! www.laxmi.com

By Order of the Board
FOR LAXMI ORGANIC INDUSTRIES

LIMITED
Sd/- Sd/-
Date : July 2, 2019 Vasudeo Goenka Ravi Goenka

Place : Mumbai Chairman Managing Director


mailto:Mumbai@linkintime.co.in
http://www.mca.gov.in/
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{NDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
Laxmi Organic Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cpinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of Laxmi Organic Industries Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive fncorme), Statement of Changes in Equity
and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other explanatory information.
(hereinafter referred to as “the financial stotements”).

in our opinion and 1o the hest of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, except for the possible effects arising out of matters in our Basis of Opinion paragraph,
the aforesaid financial Statements give The Informatinn required by the Companies Act,
2013 {“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies {lndian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2019, the profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in eq uity and
its cash fiows for the year ended on that date. . -

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs) specified under
secticn 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Cur responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities far the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are tefevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.
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Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for preparation of the Other Information.
The Other Information obtained at the date of this Auditor's Report is the Directors Report
but does not include the Standafone Financial Statemants and our auditor’s report thereon,

Cur opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the Other Information and we do
not and will not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

fn connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
Other Information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
-obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to

‘the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatament of this
- Other Information, we are reguired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard. '

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

* The Company’s Board of Directors is responsibie for the matters stated in section 134{5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financiai performance,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company In accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, impiementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from materiafl misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or kas no realistic alternative but
to do so. o ’
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The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting

process.
Auditor’s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that incfudes our opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the apgregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

1, identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud wmay involve 'collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsihle for expressing cur opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabieness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4, Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conciude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required fo draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion,
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease

{o continue as a going concera,
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5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowiedgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider guantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

‘We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethicai requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. N '

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1 As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Qrder, 2016 (“the Order”), Tssuad by
. the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the
'Companles Act, 2013, we give in the attached Annexure “A” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 1o the extent apphcabie

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3} of the Act, we report that:

a. We have scught and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper hooks of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with By this Report are In agreement with the books of account.

d.  In our opinion, the aforesaid Financlal Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e.  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act. k
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f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporiing of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal
financiat controls over financial reporting.

=8 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors

during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. . The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements — Refer Note 29 to the financial
statemenits;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were material foreseeable Josses;

. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. o

For Natvarial Vepari & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No- 106971wW

~
oo
Nuzﬁg_ an

Partner

M. No. — 124960
 UDIN- 19124960AAAAHAT966

Mumbai, Dated: july 15, 2019
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ANNEXURE A
To the Independent Audijtors’ Report on the Financial Statements of Laxmi Organic
Industries Limited

(i)  a The Company has generally maintained proper records showing full particuiars
including quantitative details and situation of its fixed assets.

h. Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year
and no matearial discrepancies were identified on such verification,

. We have verified the title deeds of immovable properties forming part of
property, plant and equipment produced before us by the management and in
“respect of title deeds which were in possession of the bankers due to charge

created , confirmations was obtained from the bankers about the title deeds
being in the name of the Company. '

(i)  The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year, The discrepancies noticed between the book stock and the
physical stocks were not material and they have been properly dealt with in the
books of accounts. '

(i) ~ The Company has not granted any foans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms
or other parties covered in the register maintained u/s 189 of the Companies Act,
2013 and hence the sub clauses (a) and (b) of clause 3(iii) of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable.

{(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 with respect to feans, investments, guarantees and security given.

{vi  The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public pursuant to sections 73
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed
thereunder. As informed to us, there is no order that has been passed by Company
Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of india or any Court
or any other Tribunal in respect of the said sections.

{(vi)  Asinformed to us, the maintenance of the cost records under the sub-section (1} of
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been prescribed and we are of the
oplnion thal prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been
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(xif)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Hence clause 3{xii} of Companies {Auditors
Report) Order 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

(xiif) Al transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188
of the Companies Act, 2013 in so far as our examination of the proceedings of the
meetings of the Audit Committee and Board of Directors are concerned. The details
of related party transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as
required by the applicable Accounting Standard.

{xiv)  The company has not made any preferential allotment / private placement of shares

or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence the

clause 3(xiv} of the Compames (Audrtors Report} Order, 2016 is not applicable to the
Company.

" {xv)  The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
- persons connected with him and hence the clause 3(xv} of the Companies {Auditors
Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

{xvi]  The nature of business and the activities of the Company are such that the Company
s not required to obtam reglstrat:on under sectson 45- IA of the Reserve Bank of

India Act 1934.

“For Natvarlal Vepari & Co.
.Chartered Accountants
Farm Reglstratlon No- 106971W

Nuzﬁat Ehan

Partner

M. No.- 124960
UDIN- 19124960AAAAHATS66
Mumbai, Dated: July 15, 2019
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements of
Laxmi Organic Industries Limited {“the Company”} as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with
our audit of the Financial Statement of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
controt stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {'ICAl'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and eryors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of refiable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibitity

Our responsibifity is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note"} and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed
to be prescribed under section 143(10} of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Contrals and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internai
financial controls with reference to Financial Statements was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to ohtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system with reference to Financial Statements and thair
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference
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to Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system
with reference to Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

- A company's internal financial control with reference te Financial Statements Is @ process

" designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and

. the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

_accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to
Financial Statements includes those poflicies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
‘maintenance of records that, in reasonable deta#f, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; {2) provide reasonable assurance

~ that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance  with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
‘management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detectlon of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
-company's assets that could have a material effect on the financlal statements,

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements,

‘Because of the inherent limitations of Financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or impraper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Staternents to future perlods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in aft material respects, an adeguate internal financial
controls system with reference to Financial Statements and such internal financial controts
with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018,
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LAXME ORGANIC INDLSTRIES LEMAITED
City (24 2000H2 DESPLIDS 1736
Balanee Sheet as at Maech 31, 2018
(AN figuses are Rupees in Loes anliess other wite stufedf

Partictlarg Note March 3, 2012 March 21, 2018
N,
ASSETS
11} Mon-currenl asscls -
{#] Property, pland and equment i 37,040 Da 27,262 45
(b} Capital work-in-progress 2IAT BB 2,995 42
{c] Cribier incangibie asscls H 94.56 11.52
i} Finandal susers
{ investments 2.1 42513 475 13
{it} Trade Receivable 22 - -
{iii} Bank Fatances 24 1954 15 57650
{iv} {oans 2.3 109551 81053
v} Others 5 18 18 1219
fe] Dther nan-current assets 3 82192 1,620.42
{1 Assets heid-forgake 4 - -
A0,203.55 33,R138%
(2] Current Ascets
{2} tnwventories k] 12,814.74 12,282.90
{b} Financial assols
{t} investments 21 1,554.05% 1,612.44
fii} Trade receivables - 2.2 30,396 34 2889133
{iid] Casls and cash equivalents 24 A% 98 13547
{Iv} Other Bank Batance 24 GG -
{v}toans 23 652 2705
{re] Others 2.5 1937 176.534
fe) Cvbar current agsote 4311730 G,247.00
td} sAssets held-for-sale a . T29.66
55,562,536 50,103.29
Total Asscis a8 765,91 83,017,14
EQUATY B LIABILITIES
Equity
{2} Enuity Share capila 6 5,004 54 40091
{t) Other Equity 7 40,546.15 36,961.96
4%, 550,689 37,962 .87
Eabilities
1) Non-turrent fiabilities
[} Firancial iabiitics 8
(i) Barrawings 81 1,460,063 . 531015
[ii} Other financial habilities 8.2 . -
{b} Provicions ) 21994 184,55
{c} Preferred 1ax Fabilities fnet) bies 1,709.93 158776
{d) Other nan-cuerent Uabilitles 11 . 5313y
§,330.50 7,135.88
“(2} Currant Habilities '
{a) Financlal fabifities
{1} Borrowings iz2 3.395.80 11,789.55
{it} Trade payables 13
-tk pulstanding dues of Micea and Small Enterprise 7151 5250
- total outstanding dues of ather than Micro and Small Enterpise 29,945.50 15,878 22
) Other financizd Habilities 5.2 5,984.67 5,108.26
{b} Provisions 9 iBB.33 104.54
fe}  Current Tax Liabilities {net) 14 926,30 1,205.11
fd) Qihor current liakiiities 2 - . 1. 5 3 T | 56540 _
40,824,72 38,818.39
Tota! Equity and Liabilities 95,765.91 £3,9317.14
The accompanying sioies form an integrat part of the standal linancla stat s
As par pue eeport of even date far and on behall of the Board of Directors
For Natvarlal Vepart & Ca. Laxmi Organic lndustries Limited
Chartered Accountants Q;W%W
I !togu!nnc-n 0, LGS TS ,,,w-—""‘”:)
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LAXMI ORGANIC INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CI R A200MH ISESPLIDS T30
Statornani of Profil & Loss for year ended March 31, 2019
AN figures are Rupees it Locs uiless otherwise stated)

Partwolars Note 2018-19 I017-18
M.
[} ANCOME:
Revenue from operations {pross) 15 1.42,880.45 1,29,044 .29
Qther income 16 G17.63 38281
Total income {1} 1.43,498.08 1,29,427.20
1) CXPENSES:
Cost of raw materials consumed 17 92,159.05 B5,905.0%
Purchase of traded goods 18 8,017.20 2222307
Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, Work in progress 12.533,23} 101.78)
ard Stockin Trade
Excise Duly - 175810
20 5,828.79 4,B26.98

Employee bengfits expense

Finance cost 21 1,380.10 £853.16
Depreciation & amortisation 22 4,082.10 2,881.42 ;
Other expenses 23 24,266.13 19,739.67 i
Totaf expenses (i} 1,33,210.24 1,18,084.67 i
Profit before tax (i) 10,287.84 11,342.53
Tax expensg 26 2,509,085 3,669.75
1. Current tox 2,391.50 2,983.90
£ Leferred tox kabiity / fasset) 122,17 685,85
3. Income Tax [Excess}/Short Proviston of previous yeor : {4.61} - . )
Profit for the perlod frem continuing aperations 7,778,784 7,672.78 ] -
Gther comprehensive income
Jtems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or fass
Hemeasurement of the net detined benefit {net of rax} (9.97) 31.11
“Total other comprehensive Incame (net of tax) {9.97) 31,11
Total comprehensive income for the year 7,768.82 7,703.88
Earnings per equily share {nominal vatue of share Rs.10/- each)

" Basle & Diluted {Rs) 15.54 15.33

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial stalements

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Natvarlal Vepari & Co. Laxini Organic Industries Limited

Charterad Accountants '

Firm Reglstration No. 106971W T

* IRV coe ) /’/,/ o /) W
; s\ -t : . "":é by i .
‘\\Q-d : '{::_ /,.-’/ - —

Muzhat Khan favirGoonka Vasuded Goenka

Partner Wanaging Direclor Chairman

M.No. 124960 f/./ DIN-00059267 PIN-00059215

ODIN £ 18424960 ARARRATA

' el J@- L

: Hartha Roy Chriw y
Cum‘pany secrelary Chief Financial Officer

Flace : Mumbal Place : Mumbat

Date : Juivl{,ml&? Pate : july 2, 2019 .




LAXII ORGANIC INDUSTRIES LIMITED
€I UZA200MHE933PLCO5 1736
Cash Fiow Statement for the year eaded 31 March, 2039
A figrres are Rupees in Locs urdess atherwise stoled)

""""""" Particulars 201819 201718

£, Cash flow from operating activilies

Profit / fLoss} before exteaordingey e and iy . 10,287 84 11,347 53
Adistineits for:
Depreciation and praortisation expense 4,097 10 2,881 42
(Profit) /doss on sale / write off of ascpls {145} {1.358)
Finance costs 1,380,106 953 16
Interost incaome {238 639) {1856.749) .
Guargntee Commission (5. 533 (5.82) '
Amortisation of upfront fees 486 6.80
Sales Tax Receivable wioft 3966 5202
Loss on sale af favestments 2313 .
Provisien for doubifol debts/Write off - ECL {2.38) 3.61
Sundry balances writien back (1335%) (82.44}
Met unrealised exchange {gain] £ loss 31665 5,466.14 [227.40) 3, 450,00
Operating profit / {loss) before waorking capitaf changes 15,753.08 14,633.19
Lhonges o worklag copial:
Adfustmenty for fincrease} / decregse in operoting assets:
lnventories 1531.75) {5,914.31)
Trade receivables {1,502.63} {7.441.61}
Financial Assels ’ {218.58) 1141.41}
Other Assets {1,134.05} {3.987.04)
Adjustments far incipese / fdecrease] in opergting liobilities: S
Trade Payzhie 13,220,186 4,172.16
Fingneiad tiabilities (308,85} {40105
ftan Financiat Liabilitins {228,459} 1076.66 -
Frovisions 108,73 6,419,127 54.87 12,6556 . . :
Lash generaled from operations ’ ) 22,173.10 1,977.56 )
‘Netingome tax {gaid) / refunds {2,759.75) {2,000.58)
et cash flow from / (used in) operating actiulties {A) ) o 19,413,82 ) (23.02]
H. Lash How trom imvesting activilies . .
"; Capitad expenditure on Property Pent snd Equipment : 19.723.78} {R,A37.749)
Proceeds from sale of Property Pand and Egulpient - Rt .05
Tbowenent in Dther Bank Balancor . O R Rl BOB.E5
{Purchase)/f Safe of Investments : : 653 {263.25} :
" Imteiest roceived ’ 28157 181,37 . S P
Not cash fow from / (used In) Investing activities {B) o {12,005 84) B {8,399,27) '
C. Cash flow from financing activitics .
Proceeds fram Lang Lerm Lorrowings 5,638.31 £,000.00
Repayment of Lony teray borrowhips {2,646.44) {4,894.G62)
Nel Proceeds from Shoet Lerm borrowings {8, 355,65} §,061.14
Finance costs {1,369.55} |853.16)
Chvitlends patd {150.34) 1120.11} :
Tax on dividend {30.86) {24.45) : : B
Met cash flow from / [used in) finzncing activities {C) S (6,958.47) o #,188.80 . . :
Met increase / (decrease) in Cash ang cosh equivalonts {A+B4C) : - :”:.'15“2:5? {23342}
" Cash and cash cquivalents af the beginning of the year . . [ 135.47 26585
Cash and cash equivalents a1 the end of the year ' - 49458 _ 3547

Compunents of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash oo Hand 2491
Balances with Bank 134056

Total Balence

Notos:
{i} Figure in brackets deacte outfiows

Statement of significant accounting poficies and explanatory notes forms an inlegral patt of the standslone financial statements

in terms of our report attached.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors ¥
For Natvarlal Yepar & Co. Laxmi Qrganic tndustries Limiled Q}L&.{n :
-5

Chanered Accountants J—
figen Regisiraliop N, 106970w 5 o &M ,/‘ —
VR <W ’
Nughy Ravi Gpenfd Vasudeo Goenka
M:; Director Chairman
[MN-00055267 HN-00059215

Panner
UDIN 48474960 ARAR HATAER
~ ‘»/\-‘

Partkia Roy Cik Y
Chief Fnancia

Conpany

- Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
\L;ﬂv Date : Julyl§ 2019 Date : July 2, 2018




LAKME ORGANIC INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN :U24200MH1989PLCO51735
Staterment of Changes in Eguity for the period ended March 31, 2019
{Alf figures are Rupees in Locs unless otherwise stated)

A Equity Share Capital

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Number of Rs Number of Rs
Shares Shares
Subscribed and Fully Paid up Capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
Opening Balance 1,00,058,081 1,000.91 1,00,09,081 1,000.51
Add: Bonus Shares issued during the year 4,00,36,324 4,003.63 - -

Closing Balance 5,00,45,405 5,004.54  1,00,09,081 1,000.91

B Other Equity

Particuiars Retained Capital Security General Totai

Earnings Reserve Premium Reserve

Reserve

INDAS balance as at April 1, 2017 20,656,10 55.00 5,011.04 3,680.50 29,402.64
irrofit for the year 7.672.78 7,672.78
Dividend Paid {120.11) {120.11)
Dividend Distribution Tax {24.45) {24.45)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans b 3111
Balance as at 31 March 2018 28,215.42 55.00 5,011,084 3,680.50 36,261.96
Profit for the year 7.778.79 ’ 7,778.79
Dividend Paid {150.14} {150.14)
Dividend Distribution Tax {30.86) {30.86)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans {9.97) {3.97)
Bonus Issued during the year {4,003.63) {4,003.63)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 31,799.61 55.00 5,011.04 3,680.50 40,546,115
As per our report of even date o For and on behalf of the Board of Directors :
For Natvarlal Vepari & Co. ' - Laxmi Organic Industries Limited

Chartered Accountanis

Firm Registration No, 10697 1w/ '
. . -8 -

el =

v-r""'ﬁ"‘—"

Muzhat Khan - Vasudeo Goenka
Partner ﬂ/‘/ - Managing Director Chairman
M.No. 124560 d DIN-00059267 DIN-00059215

UDIN : 48129960 AMARMATACE

Lo i

Pariha Roy Chewdhury
Can'pany Secretary Chief Financial Officer
¥
Place | Mumbsi Place : Mumbai
Date : Julyi$ 2019 Date : July 2, 2019




LAXNEORGANIC INDUSTRIES LIMHTED
CiN :UZ24200MIHI889P1LC051736
Statement of Sipnilicant Acceunting policies and Other Related Notes

S Carporae information

" Lawmi Organic Iadusteies Lirmted {"LOIL" of "The Company"}is the Goenka Group's flagship company, establisited in 1989 aad is ia the busiaess

of specialty chemicals. The Company primarily mansfactures Ethyl Acetate, Acetic Acid and Diketene Derivative Products {DOP). DOF is a
speclalty chemical growp, the technology ond business of wiich has been 2cquired by WML from Clariant Chemicals indis Limited LOR. is
cusrently the only manutzcturer of THW i india.

The financial statements were authorised for issue ia accordance vide resalution of the Board of Directors on July 2, 2015

B Mew stondards and Interpretations not yet adopted

1

(i

Ind AS 116 Leases:
On tiarch 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporste Affairs has notified ng A% 116, Leases. Ind A5 116 will replace the exlsting leases Standard, Ind A% 17

Leases, snd related Interpretations. The Standard sets gul the principies for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases for botl paities ta s contract i, the fessee and the lessor. ind A5 116 intraduces a single lesses scoounting modet and requires a lesiee
to recognize assets aad liablhities for all leases with 2 term of more than twelve months, undgss the underdying assetis ol Tow valye, Currently,
operating brase expenses are charged to the statement of Profit & Loss The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements lar
lessees. Ind AS 116 substaniafly carries forward the lessor sccounting reguirerents in Ind A5 17,

The ellective date for adoplion of Ind A% 116 is annuat periods bepinning on or after April 1, 2009, The standird permits two possibite methods
of transition;

Full retrospeclive — Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Palicies, Changes in Accounting Estimales and
Errors,

tadified relospective — Reteospectively, with the comulative effect of Witially applying the Standard recogaized at the date of inital

appileation.

iUnder modified retrospective approach, the kessee records the lease liability as the present vatue of the remaining lease payments, discounted
at the incremental borrowing rate and the righl af wse asset either as W3 carrying amount as If the standard had been applied since the
commencement date, but discountéd at lessee’s Incremental bocrowing rate at the date of initial application or an amaunt egual 19 the fease

" lability, adjusied by the amount of any prepaid of acceued lease payments related to that lease recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately

i*]

I

before the date of initial applcation.

Certain practical expedients are available uhder hoth the methods,
‘Un completion ot evatuation ot the etect of adopbion of tnd AS 116, the Company Is proposing to use ihe "Modltied Retrospective Approach’

for transitioning 1o Ind AS 116, and take the comulative sdiustment to retained earnings, on the date of initis! application fAprit 1, 201%).
Accordingly, comparatives for the year ended March 31, 2019 will not be retrospactively adjusted.

Tire Campany is currentfy evalualing the effect of this amendment on the standnlone financial statements.
The effect of adoption a3 on transition date would resudl in an increase in Right of use asset and an incresse in lease Sabitity.

o5 of dividend and uncertainty over income tax treatments)

Ing AS 12 fncome taxes (amendments refating 1¢ Iicome tax 3

ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tox Treatments:
On March 30, 2029, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified ind AS 12 Appendic O, Uncertainly aver Income Tax Treatments which is to be
applled while performing the determination of taxable profit (or 1oss), tax bases, vnused tax losses, unused 1ax credils and tax rates, when

 there Is encertaiaty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12 According 1o the appendix, companies need to determine the probability of

the refevant 1ax authoriy accepting each lax treawment, or group of tax ireatments, that the companies have used or plan 1o use in their
income tax filing which has to be consigered to compute the most fikely amount or the expected value of the tax treat whan determining

. laxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tex losses, unused tax oredits and tex rates,

The standard permils two possible methads of Lransition - 1} Full retrospecibve approach — Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied

.retmspec‘tiveiy to cach prior reporling period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates

and Errors, without using Madsight and ii) Retrospectively with cumutative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting eguity
on tnilal application, without adjusting comparatives.,

The effective dete for adoption of nd AS 12 Appendix C is annual periads beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company will adapt the
standard on Aprit 1, 2013 and has dedded to adjust the cumulative eifect in equity on the date of inltial applicatian i.e. April 1, 2029 withoul

adjusting comparatives,

Amendment to Ind AS 12 ~ Income taxes;
On March 33, 2018, Mindstry of Corparste Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, ncome Taxes', in tonrection with

accounting for dividend distribution taxes,

Fhe amendment carifies that an entily shall recopnize the income 1ax cansequences of dividgends in profit of logs, other comprehensive Income
af equity accarding to where the entity originally recognised those past transsctions o events.

Efiective date for application of this anmendment is annuzl period beginnlng on or after Aprit 1, 2019, The Company is curcently evaluating the
eflect of this amendmoent on the standalone financial stalerments.




3 amendment to Ind AS 39 Plan amendment, curtailment or settiement

U Miarch 30, 2079, Mindstry of Corparate Affairs issued amendments to lnd AS 1%, Employee Benefits’, in connection with accounting for plan
amendments, cortailments and settlements.

The amendments require an entily:
1. To use updated astumplions (o CRLErMiag Cdrrent seivice cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after 3 plan amondement,

curkmlment of setllement; and
2. Toracognise i profit or 1oss a8 part of past seivice CoSt, O 3 gain o4 (053 on settement, any reduction in a surplus, even il that surplus was

not previously recognised because of the impact of the assed ceding.
fffective date far application of this amendment is annual period beginniog on or after April 1, 2019, The Company daes not have any impact

on account of this amendment,

Ind AS 102 ~ Prepayment Features with Nepative Compensation

The amendments relale o the existing reguitements in Ind A% 109 repaeding termination rights in order 10 allow measurement at amorlised
tost (or, depending oa the business model, at falr value throuph other comprehensive incame} even in the case of negative compensation
payments, The company does not expect this amendment to have sny impact on it financial statements.

Ing AS 23 — Borrowing Costs
The amendments clarify that # any specilic barrowing remains outstanding alter the related asset is ready for ils intended ust or sale, that
horrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation rate an general borrowings. The

company does not expect any impact from this amendment.

ind A5 28~ Long-term Interasts in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments clarify that an entity applies ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, Lo long:term interests in an associate or joint veniure that forms
part of the net investment in the associate o7 joint veatuee but to which the equity method is not applied. The comparny does not currently
have any fong-term interests kn associates and jotnl ventures.

Ird A% 103 ~ Business Combirutions and Ind AS 113 — loinl Arrangements

The amendments Lo ind AS 103 relating to re-measurement clarify that when an entity obiains conteo! of a business that is 3 joint operalion, #

re-maasures previously held Inlerests in that businzss. The amendments to ind AS 113 dartfy that when an entily obilains joint eontrol of 2
busiess thal is a joinl operation, the entity does not re-measure previovsly beld iaterests in that hosiness, The company wili apply the
pronguncerent if g whon it obtames controb 7 joint comtret o 3 Bushess that it 3 Jaint operation.

¢ Basls of Preparation

Thess financial statements have been pregared in accordance with the indian Accounting Standards {(referred (o as "ind AS") as presortbed
uriier section 133 of the Companies Acl, 2013 read with Campanies Undian gccounling Standards) Rules as amended from time to time.

These finandia! statements are prepared under the historical cost convenlion on the acorual basis except for certain financlal Instruments,

which are measurod a2t fair vitlues, which sre disclosed i the Flnancka! Siatemants,

The classification of assels and fabihties of {he Company is done inte current and non-current based on the operating cyde of the business of
the Company. The operisting cycle of the business of the Comgany Is fess than twelve months and therefore alt current and non-cutrent
classifications are done based on the status of reltability ang expected settlement of the respective asset and tiabillty within a pediod of twelve
months from the reperting date as required by Schedute Bl {a the Companies Aoy, 2013,

Accounting poficies have been consistently applied except wheieas newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision o an
existhing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting pollcy hitherto In use.
The inancial stalements are presented in Indian Rupees {‘INR'Fand 2l values are rounded to the nearest acs, except otharwise indicated.

D Use of estimates

The preparation of the finandial statements in conformity with ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgements and assurmptions,
These estimates, judgements and assemptions affect the application of accounting polldes and the reported amounts of assets and Bablilies,
the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities 3t the date of hnsncial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the peciod. Accounting estimates condd change Trom period (o pering. Actuz] resudis could differ from those eslimates, Appropriate changes in
estimates are made as management becomnes aware of circumstances surrqunding the estimates, Changes in estimates are refiected In the
financig] statement in the peried in which changes are made and il material, their effects are disclosed in the noles to the financial statements,

o
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Current and non-current classification

All assets and Habifities bave been classified as turcen! or aon-cuerend as per the Company's narmal operating cyche and other criteria set out in
the Division H of Sehwdule 3 1o the Comparies Act, 2073, Based an the nature of products and the time between acguisition of assets {os
processing and their reslisation in cash and cash eguivatents, the Company has ascedained its oneratmr cycle as 12 months for the puipise 01

current and non-carront dzssification of 2ssets and fabilities

An ascetis treated as current when:
M iz eapected to be realised or inlended to be sold or consumed i nonmal operating cycle;
I is helt primarily for the purpose of wading
Wi expicted 10 be realised within 12 months after the reporting period; o
It is cash or cash equivatent unless resiricted from being exchanged or used to settic a liatility for at lesst twebve months after the reparting
period
The Company classifies all othar assets as nonr-current.
A tiability is teeated as current when ;
s expected Lo be setthed in noomal operating cyde;
it is held primaridy for the purpose of Uading;
iLis due 1o be setthed within twelve months after the reporting period; ar
Thate is no unconditionat right to defer the settlement of the ability Jor at least 12 months afier the reporling period.
The Company ciassilies all other lisbilities 95 non-current
Deferred tax assets and Hubilities are classified as non-cutrent assets and liabilities respectively.

Property, plant and equipment (#PE}
Praperty, planl and equipment are stated 3t cost ned of taxfduty ceedit availed, less accumutated depreciation and accumutated impsirment

lasses, if any. Cost comprizes of purchase price inclusive of taxes, comavissioning expensas, eic. up te the date the asset is ready for its intended
wse. When significant parits of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Campany derecognizes the replaced
pary, and recognizes the aew pard with its own associated vseful lile and it is depreciated accordingly. Likewise, when a majer inspection is
performed, its cost is recopnized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipmient as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satistied. Al
olhes repair and maintenance £0sts pre recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Capital Work In Progress represents exgenditure incurred on capitzl assets that are under construction or are pending capitalisation and
includes Pinject expenses pending allocation. Mroject expenses pending slfovelion are apportioned 10 the property, plant and eguipment of the
jroject proportionately on capitalisotion.

Barenwing casts na Prapecty, Plang ard Equipment's are capitalised when (he relovant recognition oiteria specified in Ind AS 23 Horrowing

Costs is mel.
Docammitsioning cosis, if any, on Property, Meat and Equipment are estimated at thelr present value and capitatised as part of such assats.

An ilem of property, plont and cgquipment and eny sigaificant part initisily recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no fulure
econontc benedits are expected frony I1s use or disposal. Any gein or loss arising on derecognition of the asset [cafculated as the difference
Drerbwiren the nel disposal proceeds and the carying amount of the asset) s Included i the incame statement when the asset 15 derecognised.

Subsequent costs are included In the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as apprapriate, only whea it 1s probatle that
future economic benelits associated with the itern will flow to Lhe Company and the cost of the ilem can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as 2 separate asset is derecognised when replaced. Al other repairs and maintenance are charged 1o
profit or foss during the reporting period In which they are incurred.

The residust values and usefut lives of proparty, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted prospedtively, if

appropriale.
The Property, plant and equipment existing on the date of transition are accounted on deemed cost basis by applying para D7AA in accordance
with the exemption provided in tnd A% 301 ™ First-time Adoplion of Indian Accounting Standasrds” at previous GAAP cairying value.

1eased Assels
Leasehold lands are amorlzed over the period of lease. Suildings construcied an leasehold land are depreciated based on the uselu! life

spacified in Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013, where the lease period of land is beyond the e of the bulding. In other cases, buildings
censtrucied on leasehold lands are amortized over the primary lease period of the lends. Finance feases that transfer substantially i of the
risks 2nd benefits Incidental 10 ownership of the lessed e, are capitalized at (he commencement of the lease o the fair value of the
leased propesty or, Hiower, 51 the present vatue of the minimum tease payments. Lease payments ace apportioned between finance charges
and a reduclion in the lease iability so 25 to achieve & constant rate of interest on Lhe remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
recognized In finance costs in the statement of profit and {oss.

A leased asset is depredated over the uselu life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainly thal the Company wili oblain
ownership by the end of the lease term, the assel is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the 2sset and the lease larm,
Assels acquired on ieases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by iessor are gassilied a5
operating leases. Lease rentals are charged 1o the statement of profit amd loss on straught {ine hasis.
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Intangible assets
Inkangibie assets are recognized when it is probable thay the future econcmic beacfits that are auributatie Lo the sssets wilt fiow to the

Company and the cost of the assel can be measured relisbly

Intanpible assets acquired separately are measured an initiaf recognition 3t ¢cost Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at
cost less any accumubrled amortisation and sccumulated impairment losses  Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised
development casts, are rol capitalised and the refated expenditure is rellected in prodit or foss in the period in which {he expenditure i
tngured

Intangible assety with Gnite lives are amortised over the usefut economic fife and assessed for impainment whenever there is an indication that
the intangibie asset may be impaired The amartisation perigd and 1he amartisation method for an intangible assel with a finite uselui dife are
reviewad at least al the end of each reporting period. Changes in the gxpected wselul life ar the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embratied in the asset are considered to modily the amortisation period or method, as appeapriate, and Are teated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amaortisation expense on intanpible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement af profit and |oss
unfess such expenditure forms part of careying value of another asset.

fnlangible Assets withaut finite dife are wested for impatement at cack Salance Sheet date and Impaitment grovision,  any are delsited to prafit
and loss.

Gitins or losses arising from de-recogaltion of an intangibde asset are measured as the difference between the et disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profil or foss when the assel is derecognised.

Deprecistion methads, estimated useful lives and residual vaiue
Depreciztion i all assets of the Company is charged on Wrilten down Valve over the useful life of asseis mentioned in Schedute B to the

Companies Act, 2013 axceptin case of Property Pant and Eouipment of Distillery unit at Salara which s calouiated on straight line method on 8
pro-rala basis calculaled as per usefut e of assets mentioned in Schedute H to the Compantes Act, 2003

Lease hold fand is amortized over the period of Lease,

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attibutable o the acquisilion, construcllon or production of an asset thal necessadly takes a subslantial pedod of

time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitatised as part of the cost of the asset. All other horrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist al interest and other tosts that an entity incurs o cannection with the boreowmg of funds.,

- Borrowing cost alse inclutes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustraient 1o the borrowing costs.

In determining the amount of berrowing costs efigible for capitalization during a period, any income earned on the lemporary investment of

Impatrment of Non-financtal Assets:
On anerwad Dasis (he Comnpany mekes an sssessment of any Indlcator that may lead 1o impalrment of nasety. An asset 18 eated ws mpalred

when the carrying cost of asset excords s recoveralle valte, Recoverabie amoesnt bs Wgher of 3n sssel’s Tair value less cosf to sell,

An imgairment ks s charged to the Statermoent of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired.

The frpaiement loss recogaized in prior accounting pertod is reversed if there has been a change in the estimale of recoverable amount,
The ecaverable amount i§ the higher hetween an asset’s fak value ess sale costs and value in e For the purposes of assessing unpa|m1enl
assets are grouprzn topgethar at the IDWESl level for which there Is separately |donnt“rabio cash flpws [cashi-generating unttsj

Inventories
ttemns of inventories are velued lower af cost or estimated net realisaliie value as given below.

Raw Miaterials apd Packing haterials:

Raw Materials and packing materiais are vatued at Lower of Cost or market valee, (Cost is nel of Excise duty and Value Added Tak, wherever
applicable). However materials and other iterns held far use ln the praduction of inventaries are not wiitten down befow cost if the firished
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sofd at or above cost. Costs are determined on Weighted Average method

Work in grocoss
Work tn process are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost is computed on weighted average method,

. rmlshed Goods & somi finished goods are vatued at tower of cost and net realizable value. The cost is computed on welghted average method

and includes cost of maierials, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in acquirng e inventory and bringing them (o {helr present
location and candition. £xoise duty ks considered as cost Tor finished goods, wherever apglicalle.

Stores and Spares:

Stores and spare parts ore valued al fower ol purchase Costs are determined on Weighted Average method and net reslisable value,

Traded Gaods:
Fraded Goods are valued 2t lower of purchase cost and nel realisable value.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalenls comprise cash on hand and demand deposits with banks, which are shart-term, highly lguid investments, that are

readily convertibie lnto known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Equity investment

Al eguily investments in scope of ind A% 189 are measured at fair value, Bquity instruments, which are held for wading, are dassified as at
FVTPL For alb ather equity insiruments, the Company may make an innevocab'e election to present in gther comprehensive Income subsegyent
changes in the fair value The Company makes such ciection on an instrument-by inslrument basis The dassification 5 made on inibia!
recogaition and is irrevocable If the Company decides to classily an equity instrument as at FVTOCL thea all fair value changes on the
mstrprmens, excluding dividends, are recognized in the O There is no recycling of the 2mounis feom 000 w0 statement of profit and toss, sven
on sale of investment However, the Company may Wansfer the comulative gain or foss within equity. Equity instruments included within (he
FYTPL category sre measured &t fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and inss

Foreign Currency Translation:

The Company’s financial statomnents are presented in INR, which is also the Company's lunctional curreacy.

Foreign curreney transactions e recarded on initial recognitlon in the functional corrency, using the eschange fate at the date af the
ransaclion At cath hadance sheet date, Toreign currency monedary items are reposied using the closing exchange rate Exchange differences
that arise on settiement of moRetary items or on reporting 3% each halance sheet dale of the Company’s monetary items at the cosing rate are
recognited as income of expenses in the peiiod in which they arisa.

Non-maonetary items, which are carried at historiczl cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined.

The gain or toss arising on translation of non-monetary items is recopnized in line with the gain or oss of the item that gave rise to the
tranglation difference,

The exchange g3in or loss on conversion of the finandal statements Tor the purposes of consalidation are carried in other comprehansive
incorme to be reelassified into statement of profit 2ad foss an disposal,

Provisions, Contingent Liabifitizs and Contingent Assots

Provisions
The Company recopnizes a provision when: it has a present legat or construclive abligation as a result of past events; it is likely thal an outllow

of resaurces will be requived 16 settle the obligation; and the amount has been refably estimated. Provisions are not recagnized for fulure
aperating loseos, Provisions are reviewed al each balsnce sheet and adjusted t reftect the current Best estimstos, LOTE LErM provisions sre fair
vilued {0 the net present value and the seme are intredsed each year by providing for the finance pordion al the B of the respedive

FOMpAY.

Conlingent linhilities )
Cartingent Habilities are dischosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whase existence would be confirmed by the
OCLUITENTE OF RON-OCCUrTEnce of ane or more uncertain future events not whotly within the cantrob ¢f the Company. A cantingent fiability also

arlses, Inrare cases, where 2 Habiity cannot be recopaised because it cannot be measured reliably,

Contingent Assets
A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an infiow of economic benelits wilk arise. When an inflow of

economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the financia! stalements. Contingent Kabikities and contingent assels are
reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Onerous contracts
A provision for onerous contracts Is measured 3t the present value of the lower expected costs of terminating the contract and the expected

cost of continuing with the contract. Befote a provision is ostablished, the Company recogalzes impairment on the sssets wilh the contract.

Eraployee Share - based payment plans ['ESGOR7)
The Cormpany accounts for the benefits of Employee share based payment plan in accordance with ING AS 102 “Share Besed Payments” except

© for the ESOF granted Lefore the transition date which are accounted as per the previous GAAP a5 provided in D AS 101 first time agaption,

Fair Value Measuroment
The Eompany measures financial Insteuments, such as, derivatives al fair value al each balance sheet date. Fair value is {he price that would be

recelved to sell an asset or paid (o transfer a Habifity in an orderly transaction between markel participants at the nieasurement date. The {air
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to setl the asset ar transter the Eability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset o fralility, or .

- I the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantagenus market must be accessible by the Company.

The lair value of @n asset or a lability is measvred using the assumptions 1hat market participants wauld use when pricing the asset or liabiliy,
assuming that market participants act in their econamic best nterost,

A dakr value measurement of a non-finandial @sset takes into dccount a marke! participant’s sbility o generale sconomic benelits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the assetin its highest and best use.

The Company yses valuation technigues that are appropriste in the crcamstances snd for which sufficient da13 are available to measure fair
value, maxinizing the bse of relevant observable loputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabdlities for which fair value is messured o disclosed in the finandal statements are categorized wilhin the fair value
tierarchy, described as follows, based on the fowest levelinpul that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 - OQuoted {unadjusted) mackel prices In active markeds Tor identical assets or Babiities

- tevel 7 - Valuztion technigues for which e Jowest lavel input that is significant to the fair value measyrement is directly of indirectly
oliservablie

- Level 3 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value messurement 1s gnobservable

For assets and halilittes that are recognized in the baange sheet on a recurring basis, the Company delermines whether transfers have

ovcurred between fevels in the hierarchy by re-assess'ng, categorization {based on the lowest fevel input that s significant 1o the fair ueiuﬁdv‘:ﬁ\g

measuremenl As a wiw!e} a !.he origf of each rc-portsng :mnod

and risks of the asset or liability ang the level of the fair vafue hierarchy as explained above,

o
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Al equity investments other than invpstment on subsidiany , jeint venture and assooi
I i

Financiaf assets

Inilial recognition and measurenent
All financiab assels are recopnized indislly 21 fair valoe plus, in the case of finanoa! assots rot recorded a1 fair value through profit o6 loss,

(U Ensnction cotls that are attiibutabie ta the zoguisition of the financial ssset
Finarcial assets are classified, at initiod recognition, 33 finpncial assets measured at Isir value or as financia? assets measyred at amostized
cast. ,

Subseauent meastrement
For purposes of subseguent measurement financial assets are classified in two broad categories:

« Finandial assets ot fair valus

* financial assets 2t amorlized cost
where assets are measueed at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized entirely in the statement of profit and Inss e fair value

thiough profil of loss), of recognized in other comprehensive income {i.e. fair value thiough other comprehensive income}.

A financial asset that moeets the following two conditions is measured st amortized cost [net of any wriite down for inpairment) unless the
asselis dosignated st Ger value thiough profit o loss under the Tafr valug optien,
+ Business madel test: The objeclive of the Company’s business madef is to hold the finandial asset to collect the contractual cash flows

{rather than to sell the instrument prior o ity contracisd matwsity to reakize s fair value changes).
¢« Cash fiow characteristics test: The conractuad terms of the finaacial assat give rige on speciied dates to cash flows that are solely payments

of principal and interest on the principal amount outsianding.
A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is mersured AL Fale Value through Other Comprehensive Income unless the asset is

designaed 2 fair vatue through proflt o loss under the fair value option,
* Business modet test: The financial assetis held within a business model whose objective is schioved by both coliecting contraciual cash

flows and selling financial assets,
« Cash fiow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specilied dates to cash flows that are solely payments

ol principat and interest on the principal amount Gutstanding.

Lven if an instrument meets the two requirements 1o be measured at amortized cost or fair value through other comgrehensive income, 3
financial asset is measured at fair value thraugh profit or loss if doing so eliminates or sigalficantly reduces 3 Measuroment of recogaition

nconsistency (sometines referred to a5 an ‘accounting mismatch’) that would othenwise arise from mwasuring assete or Habifities or
recopmzing the gains and tosses on therm on different bases.

Albothier financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss.
ates are measured at fair value in the balance sheaot, with

volue changes recognized in the statement of profit and koss.

Derecognition of finandial instruments

A Tinnneisd men (o, whers appHEsble, & peer of @ finenelal asel or parl Of & gy ol sEar ficancial assikst 1L primanity derecognleed Ly,

remaved from the Company's balance sheet] when:
* The rights tp recelve Cash flows from tha asset have sxpired, or
* The Company has translerred its tights to receive cozh flows lram the asset or has assumed an obfigalion 1o pay ihe received cash flows in

full without matedal delay 10 3 third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement and eithern

" (ah the Company has transferred substantially sl the risks and rewards of the asset, o

{b) the Company has nejther transferred nor retained subsiantiaslly all the risks and tewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the

‘asset,

When the Company has wransferred its rights to recaive cash flows from an assel or hag entered intc 2 pass-thigugh arrangement, it
evalustes if and to what axtent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has agither transferred nor retsined substantiatly alt

of the risks and rewards of the assel, nof transhorred contret of the asset, the Company contlhues 1o recegrize the transfemred asset to the

extent of the Company's continuing involvement, in that case, the Company also recagnizes an assactated iability. The teansferred asset and

‘e associaled fiabiity are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvernent that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset snd the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required (o repay,

Empalrment of financial assets

“The Company assesses impairment based on expected credil fosses {ECL) enedel 10 the Financial assets measured =1 amartized cosL.

Expecled credil fosses are measured through 2 loss allowance at an amaunt equal 1o

» the 12-manths expected credit Jossos {expected credit tosses that result from those defauit events on the finandal instrument thal are
possibe within 1.2 months after the reporting date); or

« full lifetime expected cedit losses {mpected crodit fosses that result from ali posstble default events over the life of the financial
inslrument),

The Company foHows 'simplified approsch’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

« Trade receivables or contract revenue recelvables; and

* Altlease receivables

Under the simplified apiproach, the Campany does not tack changes in aredit rigk. Rather, 1§ recognizes impairmeit loss aowance based on
lifethme ECLs at each reporting date, right from ks initial recognition,

The Company uses a provision mairik L determine impairment foss allowance an the portiolio of 17ade receivables, The provision matrix is
hased on its historically observed defaull rates over the expucted life of 1he wade receivable and is adjusted for forwscd looking estimates. At
avery reparuing date, the historical observed default rates are vpdated and changes in the {forward tooking estimates a0 analysed.

For recopnition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been 2
significant inerease in the credit risk since initial recognition, H credit risk has not nressed significantly, 12-manths ECE is used o provide
ior impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lilethne BCLis used. if, in a subsequent pericd, credit quality of the
instrument imynoves such that there is no longer 3 significant increase in credit risk since inftsl recognition, then the Cempany reverts to
recogrizing impairment foss allowanee based on 12 months FCL.

For assessing increasa in credit risk and mpairment loss, the Company combines finzactadl instruments on the basis of shared credit risk
characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed (o enable sigaificant increzses In oredit tisk 1o be identified on 3.

tienely basis.
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Financial izbilities

nitkal recognition and neasurement

A financial Hatdities ate recogrized inilially at fair value and, in the case of leans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs

The Company's linancial lisbilities inclede trade and ather payables, loans and Dorrewings including bank overdralts, and derwvative
financial instruments ) ' .

Subsequent measulement

The measurement of financial lisbilities depends on their gassification, as deseribed below:

Fuanciat liahilitees at fair value through profit or fass

Financigt labilities ot faic vabue through profit or loss include financial fiabikties held for wading and financial liabiivies designated upon imtial
recopnition a3 at fai value theowgh prafit o loss.

Financiat liabilities ave classified as hald for wading il they are incurmed for the purpose of repurchasing i the near term, This category akso
inctudes derivative financial instruments entercd into by the Company that are aot designated a5 hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by ind AS 108, Separsted cenbedded derivatives are also dassified a3 hedd for trading waless they aie designated as eHective
hedging instrumants.

Gabng orlosses on liabHities held for trading are recognized ia the staterment of prafit and foss.

Financizal liabihities desipnated upon inltial recapnition at falr vaiue through profil o loss are designated at the initial date of recopnition, and
only if the eeiteria in ind AS 109 are satisfied.

Loans and Barrowings:
Adter initial recagaition, interest-bearing loans and horrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate

{EIR} methad,

Gains and losses are recognlzed In prafit o loss when the liabilities are derecogntzed 2s well as through the PR amortization process,
Arnortized cost is calowlated by taking inte account any discount of premiun an scquisition and fees or costs that are an integeat part of the EIR.
The EiR amortizetion is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financiat guarantar contrartls
Financiad guacantoe conteacts issued by the Company e those tontracls that reqguire 4 payment to be made to reimburse the holder for = loss

itincurs because Lthe spedfled debtor falls to make a paymenl when due in accordance with the terms of a debt Instrurpent. Financal
puaranter contracts are recognized inltisly as 2 lahility ot fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly atiribotabde 1w e issuanoe
of the guataniee. Subseguently, the liabilly is measured at the higher of the amaunt of luss aliowance dotermined as per imgaliment
requirements of Ind A5 109 and the amgunt recognized less cumulative amortization.

Deracopnition

Afinsncial liability is derecopnized when the oblipstion under the Rability is discharged or cancelied o expires, When ah existiop financial
liabiiity is replaced by another from the same lender on svbstantialiy different teems, or the terms of an existing Habllity are substamially
wtiotlifbed, sueh are wxelsaoger ar meeuiostion i Doostar sy B darsougiiUon ef Mo oalglnad bty o thee paoognbtien of s new Tty The

difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognlzed in the statement of profit and loss.

Ofisetting of finzncial inttroments
Financial a55els and financial iabllities are offset and the net armount is reporled In the balance sheet i there is 8 curcently enforceable legal

right to offset the recopoized amounts and there s an intestion W settfe on a eel basis, 1o realize the assels and settle the Habifities
simutanepusly

Darlvative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initia| recognition and subsenuent measurenent

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such 3s forward cutrency contracts, interest rate swaps and forward commodity contracts,
10 hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rote risks and commodily pice risks, respectively.

Such derivative financial instruments are fitiafly recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at falr value. Derivatives are carried as finandcizl assets when the {air value ks positive and as financiat lizbllilies when

the fair value is negative,
The purchase conlracts that meet the definition of 2 derivative under ind AS 202 are recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Revenue Recognilion

The company earns revenue primarily from sale of Chemicals. Laxmi Organic Industries i a speciality chemical manusfaciurer, fotused on two
key areas Acetyl Intermaediates and Specdiality intermediates

Effective Apeil 1, 2018, the company has apglied Iad AS 115 which establishes @ comprehensive framework for detormining whether, how much
and when revenue is to be recognized. ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18, The company has adopted Ind AS 115 using the comwative catch up
transition method. The eflect of initially applying this standard is recognised at the date of inHia! spplcation e Aprik 3, 2018} The standard is
applied retrospectively only 10 contracts that are not completed 25 at the date of initial application and the comparative information in the
statemant of profit and [oss 1s not restated — e, the camnparative infarmation continues to be reparted under ind A5 18, Significant accounting
polities - Revenue recognition in the Annual report of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018, for the revenug recognition policy as
per Ind AS 18. The adoption of tnd AS 115 does not have significant effect on the financial results.

Reveruee 1 recognised upon transfer of contral of promised products 0 services 1o cuslomers inan wmpunt thad reflects the constderation
which the Company expects 1o recetve [n exchange for \hase produces of services.

Revenur is recognised (o the extent that it is probable that the econamic henefits will fiow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably

measered, regardless of when the payment is being made.
Revenue is recognized al point In time when the performance obligation with respect to Sale of Chemicels or renderirw of luorvices to i

O i
/-ﬁr;‘_“%

Customer which is the point in time when the customer receives the goods and services . . “y
' i ‘ PPN
s ~
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Revenue from: refated parties is recognized based oa Transactian price which is atarm's tenpth.

fevanue ks measured al the i value of e considesation received o receivabile, after the deduction af any trade discourtls, vohlaroe rebates |
sales return on transfer of contrel in respect of ownership to the buyer which is generally on dispatch of poods and any other taxes or gulies
coltected ar: behatf of the Government which are fevied an sabes such a3 Goods and Secvices Tax (GST). Buscounts given indude rebates, price
reduclions and otha incostives given e costonters Mo element of fimmcing is deemed prosent as the sales are mada with a payeent term

whith is consistent with market practice

Rewvenue {rom services it recognised when all refevant activities are completed ard the fight 1o receive income is established This is applicable
i case of Job Work services given by the Company to the Customers

The Company disagpregates revenue fiom sale of goods or rendering of seivices with customers by product dhassifivation |, geographical region

and Customer Cattgory.

* The Company assexses the sprvices promised in 2 contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the conteact. identification «
distinet peiforinanee obiigation involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the custamer to benefit independenily
from such deliverables.

* Judgement Is also required Lo determine the transaction grice for the contract. The transaction price eautd be either 4 fixed amgunt
custofner constderation or variable consideration with etements such as volume tiscounts, sevice Tevel credits, price concessions. The
transaction price s also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the contract includes o signilicant fingncing component.

+ The Company uses judgement o determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance obligation. The Cempany aliocies th
transaction price 1o each performance obligation on the Basis of the relative standatone selling price of each distinct service promised in the
contract.

+ The Company exercises judgemenl in determining whether the performance abligation is satislied at 8 point in time of over a period of tine
The Company constders indicators such as how custamer consumes benefits as services are rendered or whe controfs the asset as it is being
created of existence of enforcoable right Lo payment {or pecformance to date and alternate use of such seevice, ranster of significant risks and

rewards Lo the customer, acceptance aof delivary by the customer, et

£ Ouea Speraling lncoae

{i} Eligible export incentives are recopnised in the year in which the condittons precedent are met and there is no significant uncertainty about the
olectabifity. i respec ol incentives attritimiahte to the Pepart nf poads, the Campany {nllawing the areaunting principie of matehing revenoe
with the cosl has recognised export incentive recetvable when 3l conditions precedent o the oligiviity of benefits have been satisfied and
when it is reasonably certain of deriving Lhe benefil. Since these schemes are meant for neutealisation of duties and taxes on inpuls pursuant
Lo exports, the same are grouped under magerisk costs,
The othar ésport incentive: that da not arise out of noutratisation of duties ond taxes are disclosed wndor sthor operating roverie,

{B)  Revenue In respect of insurarice fother daims, commission ebe, are recognised only wher 1t 1s reasonatily certam that the uitirnale colleclion

will be made.
i) interestincome it recognised on time proportlon basts taklng inte account the smount outstanding and the rate applicable,

{iv} Dividend income |5 recognised when the right to receive the same is established,

{v} Current investmants are marked 1o market a1 the end of the relevant periogd ang the resuliant gains or losses are recognised in the incame
statement.

{vil For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehenstve income, interest income is recorded
using the effective interest rate {CIR). ER |5 the rate that exactly discourts the estimated future cash payments ai receipts over the expected

© iie of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, Lo the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised

cost of a financiat Habilty, When caloulating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expocted cath flows by considering all the
contraciuat teeens of the finanda! instrument (for example, prepayment, extenston, call and sinilar options} bul does pot consider the expected
credil losses. intarest income is included in finance income In the statement of profit and loss.

[vit} Financial guarantee income: Under ind AS, financia) guarantees given by the Company for its subsidiaries are inilially recagnised as a fiabillly o
fair value which is subsequently amortised as an interest income to the Statement of Profit and Lass,

r)  Employee benefits
All employee banefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering services are classified as short term emploves benefits, Benefits sueh as
salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences, performance incentives elc, and the expected cost of bonus, ex-geatia are recopnized ;
during the pediod ia which the emplovee renders relaled service,

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is & defii)ed contrbutian scheme, The Conpany has na obligation, other than the
contribulion payable to the provident fund. The company recagnizes contribution payable to the pravident fund scheme as @n expense, when

an employee readers the related service,
Gralily, a defined benefit obligation is provided on the basis of an actuarial valustion made at 1he ead of each year/period on projected Unkt i

Credit Methad,

The cost of providing benefits under the defined henefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit methay with actuarlal valuatians
being carried out at each balance sheel date, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additiona! unit of employee benefit
entitlemant’and measura each vnit separately to bulkd up the final abligation. :

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial palns and losses, the elfact of the asset ceiling, exduding smounts included in net interest on the Ret
defined benefit liabilily and the rewirn on plan assets {excluding amounts indluded in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recogaized lmmediately b the batance sheet with 5 corresponding debit or credit to other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Re-measwrements are not reclassificd to the statement of profit and toss In subsequent periods, Past service cost |3 recognized in the

statement of profit and Toss in the period of plan 2mendment.
The Company recognizes the follnwing changes in the net defined benefit obligation under employee benefit oupenses in the statement of

profi and foss:
 Servicg costs comprising cutrent service costs, past-service costs, gains and 1osses on curtailments and non-routine setifements.

= Hatinlaresi expense o1 income.

Long:term employee benelits i
Compensated absences which are not expecied to oocur within twelve manths after the end of the period in which the erployee 1enders the AU ad E;‘,\
o je

related sorvices are recognized as a lizhility a1 U present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet dete.




Teqrinatron henelits

Terminalion benefits are paysble as a result of the company’s decision to terminate empioyment before the amrmal retirement date, o
whenever an emplover accepls volunlary redundancy in eachange for these benehits The company recognizes these benefits when it has
demonstrably undertaken 1o terminate cuerrent emptoyees’ employment in accordance with a formal dessibed plan thal cannet bo withdrawn,
05 1o provide seversnce indemnities as a resuit of an offer made 10 encourage voluntary redun(iancy Benefits thal will net be paid wuthzn 12
mpaihs of the balance sheet date are discountad Lo thew present value -

Termination benolits are recognized as 3 expense in the period in which they are incurred.

s} Takes

Tax expenses comprise Corrent Tax and Defeeeed Tax.;
i Current Tax:

Tax on income lor the cumrent periad is determined on e basis of estimstod Laxable income and tax credits campuied in accordance with the
provisions of the relevant tax faws and Dased on the expected oulvome of assessmontsd appeals.
Current income tax relating to ilems recopnized directly In equity is recopnized in equity and not in the statement of profit and boss.
Management periodically evatuales positians aken in the tax returns with respiect (o sifuatians in which applicatile tax cegidations are subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate, .
The incomse tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax P
rale for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and labilities atteibutable 1o temporary differences and W omused 15
fasses. The current inceme tax charge is calowlated on the basis of the tax laws enscted o substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
peripd in the countries where the company and jts subsidiaries and assodates operate and generate taxable income. Management periadically
cualuates posilions Leken in Lax relurns with respect to siteations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. it estehlishes oo
pravisions where appropriate on the basis 6f amourits expected 1o be pald Lo the tax authosities. ' ’ :

it Dofarred Tax;
Beferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences al the reporting date between the tax bases of assels and
linbitities aned their carrying amaountin the standalone financtal statement for linandal reporting purposes at the reporling dale.
The carrying amount of delerred tax assels B reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable prolit will be svallable 1o allow #1E or part of the deferred fax asset Lo be wtilizad. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are
reassessed al each reporting and are recognized Lo the exlent that | has become probable thal fulure taxable profits will ailow the deterred
Lax assot to be recovened.
‘Deterred laxn assels and liabilities are measured at Lhe tax rales that are expecled to apply in the year when the asset is realized or Hability
“settled, hased on the tax rates (tax Faws) that have been enactod or substantively enacled at the reporting date.
Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit and foss 15 recogplzed outside the statement of profit and loss,
Geterred tax items are recagnized in corrclation to the undedying wansaclion gither in other comprehensive income of divecthy in eguity.
" Deferred lax assets and delerved tax fiallbles are offset if 2 legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assels agains! current incame
tax fialillies and the defeered taxes relate 1o the same taxalhn endity and the same taxarion antharity.
The break-up of major companents of deferred tax assets and fiabilities as st balance shee! date has been arrived at afler setting off deferred
tax assels #nd liablfities where the Company have a legally enforceable right 1o set-off assels agamst menmc; and where such assets and
Nabilities refate 10 1axes o0 income levied by the same governing 1exation [aws,
For ilems recognised in OCHor equlty, deferred / current tan 1s also recognised in OC or equlity.

fit  MAT Credit:
Miinimum Afternate Tax {MAT] paid in 3 year is charged to the statement of profit and foss a3 current tax, The Group recagalses MAT credit
available a5 a deferred tax asset ondy ta the extent that there is reasonable certainty that the Company will pay normal intome Lax during the
specilied period, ie, the perdoed for which MAT credit is sBowed 10 be caried Torward. The MAT credit to the exteat there is reasonable
certainty that the Company will utilise the ceedit is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss and cowesponding debit is done Lo the

Beferred Tax Asset as unused tax credit.

4] Leases
- Atthe Inception of each lease, the lease arrangement is dlassified as either a finance lease or an operating lease, basett on the substance of the

lease artangemaent.

Dpetating lease;
feases in which a significant pollmn of the risks and rewsrds of ownership are pot transferred to the Company as lessee are cisssilied as

operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases {net of any incentives received from the bessor] are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss an a
steaighl-ling basis over Uhe period of the lease unless the payments ace structured (o increase in Boe with expecled general inflation to

compgntate for the fessor’s expected infladanary cest increase

finance teases;
Assets 1eased by the Company in its capacity as fessee where substantially alf the risks and rewards of ownership vest in the Company are
classified as inance leases, A finance lease is recognized as an asset and & labillty 21 the commencement of the lease, 3t the lower of the fair

value of the asset and the present value of the minimam lease payments.
Minimurm fease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the redoction of the outstanding
fiability. The finance expense is allocated to each perior duing the lease larm so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the lahility

Leasehold lands sre amortized over the pericd of fease Buildings constructed or leasehold land are deprecisied based on the uselul life
speaifled in Schedide It to the Companies Act, 2013, where the lease period of land is beyond the Iife of the building. I otlier cases, buildings
constructed on leasehold lands are amortized over the primary lease pericd of the lands.

u}  Research and Develepment
Kevenue expenditure on research and development is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in whick it i5 incurred. Capital

eapirditure on research and development is considered as an addilioa Lo prope by, pant & eguipment S intangtlle assets.

s




v}

w}

x)

vi

Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share sre calculated by dividing the net profit o loss befare OC) for the yoar by the weighted average number of equity shares
oJtstanding during the period  For the purpose of calculating dituted earnings par share, the net profit or loss belore OCI tor the poriod
sutriliutable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of aff
dikutive potentizl equity shares

Dividend Distribution

Dividerd gdistribution to the Company's cquity hoklers i5 recogeized as a fiabifity n the Campany's annual aceounts in the year in which the
dividends are appeoved by the Company's equity holders

Trade Payabies & Trade Receivables

A payable is ctassified as a “trade payable’ilitis in respect of the amount due on aocount of goods purchased of services received i the narmat
cowrse of business. These amaunts represent babifities for poods and services pravided 1o the Company priar to the end of the financia! yoar
whith are unpaid. These amounts are unsecoved and are vsually seuled a5 per the payment 1erms staled It the contract. Trade and other
payables are presented as current Kahilities vnless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period, They are recognised
injtially at their fair value and subsequently measured a1 amartised cost ushng the EIR method,

A receivabile is classified as 5 “wrade receivabie’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods sald or services rendered in the normat
course of business, Trade receivables are recogaised Initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR methad,
less provision for impairment.

Goverameni Grants

Government granis are recopnised at their fair value where there i a reasonabie assurance that the grant will be received and the Campany
wlil comaly with 2l attached conditions.

- Government grants reteting to the purchase of property, plamt and equipment are included in Kabilities as deferred income and are credited
to the Statement of Profit and Loss In a systemnatic basis over the expected Bife of \he related assets and presented within othet incame.

- Gavernment grants refating 10 income are deferred and recognised in the Stztement of Profit and Loss over the perind nocessary to mateh
Lhern with the costs that they are Intended to compensate and presented within other income.
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LAXMEORGAMNIC INDUSTRIES LIMITER
CIN 242 00MHISBAPLC051T 36

iNotes to Standal {ingncial stah ts #5 at and {or the period eonded March 31, 2019
(Al figures ore Rupees i Lors uniess olherwise stoled) :

As ak As al e
MWarch 31, 2019 Mparch 33, 2018 harch 31, 2029 March 31, 3008
2 [nancial Assets wan- Current Lurrent
2.1 A Investments in Subsidiaries | foint Ventures and Associstes
{Unguoted &t cost}
i Loulty Instroasieni of Subsidiasies
taxmi Organic indusiries B of fure 110 cach {150 shares {March 1763 12 63
31, 2028 18D shares))
Laxmi Potrochem Middle East FZE of ALD §000 each (34 shares 1303 11.0%
{Mareh 31, 2018: 34 shares))
Celthion tifesicence ivt. E1d. of Rs 16 each {10,000 shares {March 38547 33447
31, 2018: 10,000 shares)}
Laotni Ufeselonce Pvl. Ltd of R 10 aach {10,000 shares {dMarch 31, 100 106 -
2018: 10,000 shares))
Viva tMescience Pyl Lid. af Rs 10 each {10,000 shares (March 33, 100 1.00
20118: 10,000 sharzs))
i} A% Cumadative Redeemable Preferonce Shares
Laxmi Organic fnduslries BY of Guro 20,00,000 each (i shore 1,554 05 1,612 44
{Mareh 31, 2058: 1 shere))
Tatal 475,13 425,13 1,554.05 1,512.44

{a]  Laemi Qrganic industries (Curcpe} BY has issusd One Cumubstive Preforence Share 1o lasmd Chganle dusies Limited @ 20,00,000 £uro
Redeemalite on August 38, 2078 The tern of the said Prefarence shares are further extonded for teo years vide agrooment datod Avgust 28, 2018
Lill August 28, 2020, The above preference Shares carty dividend coupon rate of 4%

(&} Betails Of loans given, investiments made and guaramoe gven covered under section 186 (4} Of The Companies Ael, 2013:

The foliowing s Lhe detals as of March 31, 2019 of the Loans, investments and Guaianteds given by the Company bs the Subsidiary Companies and
Join ventere (V] Lampany: E
5. No. Mame of Party Witure 201819 2017-18
Buvas {obdings Lindted - I “inwestrient 511 2456
‘2 Suvac Holdinge limited Y : . Corporate . 202
’ . Guaranlee
2 Loami Qrganic Industries {furapa) §.v.- WOS - - Lorpodate 38851 -
Guarantoe
4 Llawmi Pettochem tAiddte fase FZE- WOS S {oan R.15 -
Az A at
MWarcit 31, 2018 March 31, 2008 March 31,2019 Mareh 31, 2018
Non- Current Current
2,2 Trade Recelvabies
funsecured, gl grtortised cost)
i} Considered goot 20,396.34 28,841 23
- di}  Considered doubtful 20,23 40.21
tessi- Allewance for Credit [oss . [29.83) {41.21)
Totzl - - 30,306.34 28,891,323
Expecied Credit Loss:

The Company uses a provition matrix to daterming tmpairment loss on portiolio of l1s trade receivable. The provision matrix Is based on its
fistorically ahserved default rates over the expecled hfe of the trade recevable and s adjusted for foryard- looking estimates, AL overy reporting
date, the histerically observed default rates are updated and changes in Forward-teoking estimates ar analysed. Based on the past expotience of
receivables the Company has not provided tor cxpocted credil loss. Hewever, Ure fife tirme credit loss 1s provided on case to cse basis.

" the Company estimates impatement under the simplified approach. Aoeordingly, it daes not track Whe changes in credit risk of rade receivables. The

Impaltment amount represents lifetime expected crodit loss. In view thereof, the additiona| disetusures for changes in credit tisk and credit impaired

are not disclosed,

(2] BWovementin Alowance for Credit Loss As at
Particiiars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Balance al the beginning of the periad " 40.21 11277
Addition during the year - . N
Reversal during the yesr {10.88) {72.56}
2933 40.21

Provisior at the end ol the period
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23 Loans and Advances (at amaortised cost}
fUnsecwred, Comidered good }
i Secwrity Deposit
i  loans to Related Pary
i} Other receivable from related pany

Cellbion LifeSciences Private Limited
Laxmi Petrocherm Middle Cast (F28)

24 Cach and Bank Balances
A Cash and cash equivalents
i Balances with banks
it} Cash on fand
Totat

‘B Gther bank batances

i} Fised Deposit

i fixed Daposit against BG/Margin money
Total

K Gragd Total

2.5 Qther Fingnoial Assets

{Umctured considered good untess atharwse stated)

H o Advance Lo Stafl

i inlerest acciued reecivable
‘From related parties
Frombanks
From others

W) darurance Clmm Receivahls

W] Unbilled revenue

Other Azzets
il Caputaf Advance
- HF Prepaid expenses

it Prepaid Upfront fess
"W} Prepaid Rent

vl Prepaid taxes (et of provisions)
wH Balance with Government futhorilics
vii}  Advances to Suppller

) ~ Considered good

Considered doubtiut

Less . dmpairepent of doubtful advances

vill  Export centive receivalile

i} Fapodl Ucenses on hand

%} Other Recelvables

¥} Contribution to Gratulty Fund
Total . .

Az al B at
arch 31, 2018 March 33, 2018 March 31, 2019 Maich 33, 2018
Mo Curresd EUHERE s
39763 291412 -
695 08 61% 51 - .
. . 65 20 FEE )
B 1,085.71 910,53 &b 20 2108
GOR.OB Gi% 4l - .
- 65 30 27.05
GIB.0% G18.53 G528 27.05
A gt As al
Karch 31,2019 Barch 31, 2008 March 33, 2019 Mareh 33, 2008
Nen- Cerrenl Currenl
47166 11056
23 32 24.91
- - 494 58 335.47
. - 2,008,060
1.4854.15 Y659 -
1,954.1% 576.59 2.000.00
3,854.15 576.58 2,10914.9% 335.47
As at As at
March 3%, 2018 Merch 31, 2018 Mprch 31, 281%  March 33, 2018
Non- Current Carent
. 1B38 1218 119 6746
- 26,53 9238
- 486 2.39
- 9.8
- 033 LRy

As ol fis at
March 31, 2019 WMarch 33, 2018 March 31, 2019 Margh 31, 2018
Mon- Cutrent Currenl
18053 876.93 - . -
232 250 4350 - 146504
318 203 o . .
43,16 Ll -
7354 7995 . - -
512,20 575,68 4,023.83 2,254.89
3.444.82 3,433.43
27r21 277.21
372204 3,710.64
- 27121 7721
- - 3,044 83 343343
287.24 132.05
. 219,75 278,91
B - 0.13 0.68
- 24,32 v .
821,92 3,620.02 §,119.28 G, 447,80




___________ 5 a1 As al
htarch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2809 March 33, 2018

4 Assers held-for-sale Non- Curfent Current
il Lquity instrumens of Joint Venture
Suvas Holding of Rs 50 cach (B shares (March 31, 2018: 65,271,932 - - - . . TRY GEB
shares)i "
ot s e - T

fal  During the year, the Conprany hay sold Shares of Suvas Heldings Uimited to Ravi Goenka and Rajeey Goerka [ 18,58,329 and 55,74.388 shares
respratively) & Bs 10 per equity share .

As 3t
harch 31, 2009 Mareh 31, 2018

5 hwentories Curranl
et Jower aof cost and net reolisable volua)

a)  Hew matensd 1,267 43 4,63682
b}  Work-in-progess BE&0,3% 42820
t]  Finished goods 333568 1,218 41
d}  Consumabée Stores and spares 1,108 87 71E.28
v} Fuel and consumalbies 17082 1B4.5%
1} Packing Material 1 3% BO.53
gl Trading . 3569

13,836,724 12,282.9%

Fis ot

March 31, 2015 March 33, 2Q18

& [quity Share capital
t}  Authorised shares ;

5, 50,00,000 (March 31, 2038 : 2,70,00,000) Eguity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 5.1.00.00 2,100.00
Total 5,100.00 2,100.00

i) Issued and subscrised and pald-up shares :
© %,00,65,405 (March 31, 2Q18 ; 1,00,09,081) Equity Shares of Rs, 10/ each 5,004.54 1, BHAET
Toval paid-up share capital ' ' 5,04, 54 1,400.93

) Heconciliation ol the byuite EHaros- UL Ending aTAbe Beginnding 3l at1he et oo prrod- e
) Asat

Maarch 33, 2019 March 31,2019 Mawch 31,2008 March 31, 2018
Number Arcunt uamber Amdint
falance, bepinning of the period 1,00,09,081 1,000.91 1,00,09 &1 1,000.91
s Bonus shares lesued during te year 4.00.36,324 4.003 63 . -
Bafance, end of the peripd 5,00,45,005 5.004.54 10008481 1500.91

B  TJerms frights attached 10 equity shares
The Company has anly one class of shires referred 1o as pouity shares having par value of Rs. 10f- cach. Hotder of cach cquity share is entitied to
anevote per share, ko the evend of Iiguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied t reccive any of Lhe remainkng assels of
the Company, after distribution of &l preferential ampupts, The diswibution witl be in propoition ta the number of equity shares held by the
sharcholders,

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indizn ripees, The dividend proposed by the Board of Direcions is subject to the approval of the
Sharehotders in Whe ensuing Aimual General Meeting.

¢} Belails of shiarehalders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars tarch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Number of shares k2 fMumber ol shares %
Ravi Goenka Frustee of Yellow Stone Trust £4,01,86,120 205 80,37,224 BO%
International Finance Corporation (Washington D.C.} 50,25,010 105 10,058,802 0%
o) fs per the records of the Company, including its register of sharcholders/members and other declarations received Irom shascholders, the above
shareholding represeats legal awnerships of the shares,
e} I danaary , 2019 the comprany has issund Gonus shares - (4,00,36,324 shates) to all its existing share holdees in the ratio of 1:4 shares at face value

of B3 10/-, The aforesald issue is mede by utitising the balance in Retained Earnings of the Company.

Hoewever the sbave honus sltotment i not reflectad in tho DMAT account of the Campany die to some lechnical proliem

As at
MWarch 31,2039  Mareh 31, 2018

r Other Equity

i} Reteined Earmings 31,79%.63 28,215.42
iy Generzffleserye 3,680 .50 3,680.50
Hi]  Serurity Promism Resecve 5,011.04 5,021.04
i) Capital Keserve 55.00 3500

A0, 546.15 30,961.96

W




A5 at As at A

March 33, 2019 ©arch 31,2018 March 31, 2019 Mard: 31,2014

A Financial Lialilities {at amortised cost) Mon- Current Current .
81 Leng weem Borrowings
{a) Termtoans:
flupce Term Loan lrom Bank 4,232.22 ERER T 1,555.50 BEE.EY
Fargign Qurrency Losn fram Sank 2,397 94 - 6891 .
Fernign Currency Loas froam Muli faterad Ageney {LF C) Bo1 71 1,958 32 1,3563.43 130G 88
it} Vohlde loans
Vehicle Loans - Other than Bank 1516 27.23 £.04 1492
(¢} Government Grant 129.60 220.51 8051 13241
3,406 85 7,313.10 :
Less: Disclesed in Olker Cuvrent Financial Liablities {3,406 8%) (221310
7460.63 5,330.35 -
The break-up of above:
Securad ¥.33102 5,089 .64 3,315.94 2,200.6%
Unsecured 128,60 ZA0.51 S0.51 11241
7,460.61 5,310.1% 3,406.8% 23,333.10

‘Hotes:

A} Tetmm Loan nchides :
ij Rupee Term loans o banks (HEFC Bank Lid):

Tenure of Loan - Max 60 Months

Repayment | 18 kqual Guarterky Instaliments afler a maratariun period of & monthe from the date of 1st dishursement
Interest : Linked with HDFC B2nk 1 Year MELR 4 35 bips fof Rs. 50 Crs sanclioned TL and I Year MCER + B0 bps for Rs, 20 Cis sanctionad TL

i} Eoraige Currency Fem loans From banks {1 Bank NA, Jersey}:
X5 equat quartery mstallments m boreign Curcendy will start fram Oclober 2049, Interestis payable @ 3 manths UST Libor plus 375 bps poa.

Wy Foreign Larrency toan from Sull Latera! Apency (LF.C )
- A0 hatl yearly Insialiments feom December 2005 | Interest vale s six months tkbor plus G000 Bps.

- B} Socugity of Torm bosns ;

&) First padi passu charge an all present and fulure movable and immovsble Property Plant and Equtpment of the Company situated al Af22/2/3,
AF2TFFI0, A B-RRF2F2 MIDC, B335 takad industrial Area, Oist Raigad Maharashira
] First Charge on alt present and future movable and immaovable Froperty Plant and Equipmend of the Company siteated at 87272, 8-3/1/1 MIDC B-

3/1/2 tdahad industrial Aras , District. Raigad
} Fiest Pari Passu chaige on alf movable fiked atsets ol borrower at 79541, Chimangaon, taluka Koregaon, Dist. Satars, Maharashira {Note: This is

not applicable to foan taken fram LE.C.}
disecond parl passu chatge ph entite carrent mssets of the Fompeny

€}  Vehicle Loan:
Vehtcle doans are secured agatost the same vehiche far which tnan is taken. Charge on the Vehicle taken during _the year is yet be registored.

B} Goversment Grant
There are multiple interast free sales tax loans which are repayabie in five fns
He.220.5) locs as al March 31, 201% (Previeus Year 332.91 fecsh The first installment date veas May 2009 and last tepminal dote it May 2023,

Ik from theis due date . The Company has outstanding of

T B} Maturity Profile at Long lerm Borrowings:

. Particubacs Miarch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Instatment payable within ore year 340685 2,315.10

" lnslaiment payable between Ito 2 yeais 3.026.36 228873
Instalmeat payable between 2 to S years 4,434.36 2,962.02
instafrnent payable beyond Syears . - 32,40
Total 10,867.48 ¥623.25

FI A per the Amandment to INDAS 7 Statement of Cash Flow ™

An entity shall provide disciosures that ensble wsers of financial statements 1o evalkeale changes in Fubilities arsing from finaneing activities,
including both changes arislng from cash flows and non-tash changes.

Particudars Non-current Current Current matirities Totzl
Lorrowings bBorsawings al lpng term
boreowings
Opening balance 5,310,086 11,799.55 2,315.10 15,432.80
5,304,687 {8,78B.39) (2,233,100 {R.796.62}

LChanges [rom finaneing cash flaws

The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates 25246 - - 25246
Filk Discounting - 33e. 71 . 386.71
Cilter changes [transler within ¢ategories) {2,806 .85} . 3,4006.85 -

Clastng belance 7.460.63 | * 3,39%.80 3,400.85 14,267.34




Yjp

As il Asat

March 31, 3005 March 31, 2038 March 33, 2038 Merch 34, 2018

Nan- Current Lurrent
82 Cthes Financlal Lobifities (at amostised cost)

i} Cursent matuerity of fong term borrowings 3406 85 2,313 10
iy Advance feccived sale of iveestments]*) . 56660
i} Payable for Copital Goods ’ 108175 692 20
iv) Inkerest augrued [T 130,56 12001
v Deposireceived - 4$6.00 MO0
viE)  Maff Salary and other Payatile 1,313.59 1,314 17
i) Ameunt payable on hedging transeciinas 3532 073
Totaf - 598407 5, 108.26

{*]  Refer Hote daj for Advance received for sale of investment.

8 Provisions

H

#}

fa)

{b)

‘)

(b}

el

{d}

fed

{f)

Interest accrued incledes wterest ascraed and due as at Warch 31, 2109 which is debited by bank in first werek of April,

As at Az at
Mzl 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2039 March 31, 2018
Kon- Current Current
Proviston for employee benefigs
Lesve Encashment 219494 184,65 plicxiry 4760
Grahuity - . 28568 -
Provision for Sales Return - - 5658 6234
Tolal 219.94 184.65 18833 104,%4

Disglosure under ING AS 37 " Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assals”

.meslon far Sates Relurn
Opening fialance  Addition during  Utilised during the  Glosing Bafance

mg al
' the period yoar
Wik 31, 2613 R 1,200.20 LI 036
MICh 31, 2018 45,10 17174 15750 BE3

Dhsclosures a5 required by Indisn Accounting Slandard {ird AS) 1% Cnsplovec Benefits- Gratulty

The Lémparw has carned oul the actuanial velustion of Gratuly and Leave Focosimnosl liability under actuanial prindpke, in aocordance with i AS
19 Tmployee Heneflts,

Groluity is 2 defined benefit plan under which employees who have comnpleled Five vears ar mare of service are unlitied to gratisty an departure
from employment at an amount equivatent 1o 15 gays sebary (baved on last drowa salary) for each completed year of service restricted to fs 20 lacs
{ previous year ls J0 facs } The Company’s pratuity liability is entirely funded and feave encashiment is non-fusded.

The smount secogntsed in the batance sheet and the ts In the net defined beneltt obligation of Gratvity ovor the yoar Is 35 under:
Farticulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Reconciliation of apening and dosing bakances of Defined Braelit Obligation e

" Defined Benefit Obligation at the bepinning of the year L el 23844

* Current Service Cost 47.894 35.56
inLerest Cost 18,62 1593
Actuzrial (Faln) Acss-Other Comprehensive Income 9.9y [21.11}
Fast Servive Cost .09 18.9%
Benefits paid 0.09 {12.07)
Deffned Benefil Gbligation at the year end 339.28 26174
Recenctliation of opening and clasing balances of fafr value of plsn dssets
Faif Wolue of plan asscts at the Beginning of the year 2BG.0G 43025
Investment income 2146 15.65
Employer Conteibulion 310 5223
Benefits Faid - 112.07}
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the year end 310.60 286.06
Reconciflation of fakr vafue of assets 3nd obligalions
Fresent value of Dofined Benefit Obligation 230,08 261.74
Falt Value of Plan Assats 31060 286.06
Net Asset £ {Liability} {28.68) 24,32
Expenses recognized during the year { Under the head ” Employees Bonefit Exy )
1 Incorne Slatement A5.12 54.83
Ir Cther Comprehensive ingome 9.97 [31.11)
Total Lxponses Recognized doring the periad 56,10 372
Actuarial {Gain}ftoss- Oiker Comprehensive Incame 9.97 {3113}
Kot lizbliitles recognlsed in the balance sheet
tong-term provisions . (24.22)
Shorl-terin provlsions 28.68 -

2E.65 {24.22)
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10 Deferred Tax Lishifity

|

)

1}

i)

[e}

W

fih

iy

fiv)

v

o}

fwii)

Artuarig Asiaplions e e e — e
e Farticulars T areh 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Discount rate Girer 2omnum} . 7.40%, & EO%
Salary prawth pate {per annn) 5% oo
¥5 1%

Aldrrson rake

The discount rate mdicated above reflects the estimated tinting and currency of henefil paymonts 1 s based an the yieids 7 rates availakile an
appheabie bonds us on the turrent valuatien date.

The salary growth rate indicated atiove i the Company's best estiptsle of an inceease in salary of the emplayees in fiture years, determined
consrdening the general irend inomflabion, seniority, pramolions, past experience and gther relevant faclors such as demand and supply in

ermployent markel, etc

Sensilivity Analysis
A guantitative Sonsiibvity Analysis for sipoilicant as ptan

Particutars Discount Selory Growth Adtrition Hate Wierislity Rate
Rate Rate

Changes in Assumpifon .

Blarch 32, 2019 (%) 1% 1% 1% 1%

March 31, 2018 (%} 1% 1% 0% 10%.

Increase in assimption

Mareh 31, 2019 21958 6068 344.48 FEEE]]

March 31, 2046 PR 27870 266,34 261 B4

ecrease in ossamption

fharch 31, 219 361.36 31976 344.48 329.16
27958 567 454,19 261.64

haseh 31, 2018

Descriplion of Risk Exposuras

Valuations are performed on cerlain basic 5ot of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatary frameveerk which may vary ever time. Thus, the
Lempay it meposed to various risks in providing the abiove gratuity beaefit which sre as follows:

Interesl fade risk: .

Tl pladr enpruses Uie Conopyny b e risk of full ninterest rates, A Tak In latersst rales wifl result in an dacrease in the witlmate cost of providing the
ahove henel and will thus resuitin an incrsase in the vatte of tie fhabllily fas shown b finaucial statements),

Lguidiny Rizh:

This s the risk that the Company Is nol able 1o meel the short-teem pratuily pay-outs. This may arise due to non avadlabitity of encugh cash £ rash
eauivalenl Lo meel the fishiities or holding of ifllguid assets not betng sobd in time.

Lafary Escalation Risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of safary Increase rate of plan participants in future, Deviation in
the rate of increase of sslay In fuleie oo plan participants from the rate of incresss in salary Used to detesmine the present value of obllgation

will hawve 8 pearing ob the plan's Habllity,

Lremopraphic Hek:
The Company has used certain moality and altritton assumplions in valuation of the labitity, The Company is exposed to the risk of atlual

expertence terning out to e warse comprared (g the sssumption,

Repadatory Risk:

Gratuity benefd 15 paid in sccardance with the requireiments of the Paymenlt of Gratuity Act, 1972 {as amended from tine to lirme). There ks a risk of
change In regulalions requiring higher gratuity pay-outs (e.g. Increase in the meximun limit on gratuily of Rs. 20,00,000).

d to duration of asseis, exposing the Company 1o market

fssel Lability Mamatghing or Mazkel Risk: The duration of the lability i longer comp

rigk for volatilitios fall in interest tate.
Investment Risk: The probability or likellhood of occurrence of losses refative 16 1he exprected relutn on any perticuls: invesinent,

As at
Wiarch 31, 26519 March 31, 2028

Ceterred Tax Lizhifity on soccount of ; - . .
i} Properly Plant & Equipment oo : ) 2,175.87 202411
o ] - 2,175.87 2,024.31

Deferred Tax Asset ¢n account of 3 : o
i Minirum Alternate Tex 245.95 24595
i} Provision for doubtful advances and debts ) ’ 10712 111.00
M} Yax dissllowances ) 11287 FEX3d
o 465,84 436,35
1,705.93 1,587.76

Deferred Fax babllity, net

e,

R i,




=

his at Asan
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 harch 21, 2019 fviarch 31, 2018
Non- Current Lurrenl
1 Oher abilives T
i faties and Taxes payable 204 .46 24847
it]  Advance lram cusiomers . a6y 31519
i} Guaranloe Liabilty 5333 614
Total ) 5333 309,35 60,80
As al
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2008
12 Short Term Borrawings {at amartised cost} A
From 2anks
Cash Credit 1,946.15 HE64 11
Short term Loans L0008 :
Buyers Credn . 3,070.44
Dilf THscounling 388.7) :
Feam Otfiers
From {Hreciors 65.08 B5.00
Tolat 3,399,806 11,799,558
Secured 1,546.15 31,734.55
Unsecured 3153.71 65.00
As at

13 Trade Payables (at amortised cost)
i Micro and Small Enterprise
i} Cther than Micro and Small Enterprise
Total

o Amounts duc to Miceo, Small said Medhim Enlerprises

AR 52,50

79,945 50 13,878.22

30,017.01 19,930.72

dgium Enterprises Development Ad, 2006, 1o whoot the Company

Details of Micro, Small and Modivm Eaterprises, a5 defined int Lhe Micro, Small, b

ower tues on atcount of prinedpsl amount wopether with inlerest and aceatdingly disciosed hereunder,

The information given helow regarding Micie, Small and Medium Enterprises have been dotermined to the extent siich parles have been identified

by the Cornpany. This is rolicd upon by the auditors,

Mg at 31 Mazch

Particulars As At 33 March

_ 2015 2018

Principal amosi due 7151 " 5250
“nterest due on above C 228 ]

Amount paid in terms af Sec 16 of the Micre, Smail and Medism Enterprise Develos it - -

Act, 2006

- Principal amaunt paig heyond appointed day 219,88 234,01

- fnlerest paid thereon - .

- Ammpunt of interest due and pavable for the petiad of defay B} 270
Amount of inderest secrued snd cemabnkng unpaid a5 81 year end 1627 12,95
Amount ol further interest s ing due and payable in the succeeding year - -

At

4 Curent Tax Labilides {net}
’ ’ “Curtenl Tax Liabikities {net of taxes paid)

Total

March 31, 2319 March 31, 2016

926.30 1,3045.11

i,305.11

916.30




2018-19 2017-18

1% Revenue from Qperatians
i} Salesf Rendaring :

- Froduets 1.41,304 §3 127547 6B

+ Services il G 268.16

' ' 3.42.957 49 1,26,225 84

i) Ottt Oherating Revenne:

Sale of Scrap TRAGS FENE
Export ingeatives 799.60 54639
Income from BEPE puichase ot discount nay JBLAD
Insurance Claim reteived 3279 S0.58
512.9¢ H1E55

Total 1.47,880.45 1,30,044.30

Disclosure in accardance with Ind AS - 115 " Revenue Recognitton Bisclosures”, of the Campanies | indian fcg ing Standards) Rules, 2015

1 flevenue dissggregation based on ;

{&) Category of good and services 2015-1% 2017-18
Chonticals 1,35,445,32 1,12,473.06
Coat LG8 79 i5,318.37
Others . 170,72 16625
Jabwork and Other Senvices &62.66 26816

' ' 1,41,967.49 1,28,225.84

bl Geographical region ) 2018-1% 2017-18
[ndia 1.02,249.88 99,593 62
International 19,717.61 28,632.22
311,867,459 1,728,225, 64

(¢} Market or type of cirstomey : . 2018-19 2017-18
’ PsU . ~ ' - 7,581.34 138082
tion - PSU ' o - 1,04 384,14 1,25,090,53

1,413,961 .4% 1,38,225.84

2 Movement in Contract Balances

fi)  Advanee frem Customers: - . T 2018-19 2017-18
Opening Balance L . ] 336.03
Less 2 Invaices raised/ Adjusted during the yoar : {31244} {2708
Add @ Advances received during the year . 10194 25610
Clasing Balance _ 104 65 315.19
(i} Unbilied Revenue: C . - - 2018-19 2017-18

Upening Balance . .
Loss D invoices raised duding the year .
Add : Acceued during the year . 2436

Closing Bolnce Lo 3136 .
2018-1% 2017-18
36 Othey lcome - - -

i Interest incore on Frmncist Asset : : . ’ . 238,69 145578

Wy incame ftom Brokorsge . o Co 001

i) Guaraptee Commission : ) 513 582

W} Interest en lncome Tax Refund . . ) . 6.7%

v} Sunrdry halances written back L . 133.87 8284
. wi) Profiton Sake of Proporty Plant & Equipment - - : : N - : 4.1% 13%
vit]  Miscellancous incomne . . ) . 233.07 9721 ,
viti}  Reversal of Expected Credit Loss ' : : . i3s

Total . . : : 617.63 38281

ES




17 Coslof Materisls Cansumed
Opening Mok of Raw Mateqal
Add : Fuschases

Less @ Closing Stock of Raw htaterial
Cost of Material Consumed

Tha disclosure of inventories recopnised o2 an axpenso in accordance with parageaph 36 of ind A5 2 is g5 Tollows:

Particulars
{i} Amaunt of inventories recognised oz an expense during the perjod.

{iif Amount of write - down of inventories recognised 25 an crpense durlng the petiod.

1 Purchase of Stack ko trade
il Chemicals and Chier Purchases
i) Codl
Tatal

19 Chengesin inveniorles of Finished Goods, Workin progress and Stockin Trade

“WIP Inventary a1 the beginhing of the year
WHE Invenlory al Lhe end af the year

FG Invantory o4 the beginnlng of the yea
Fa Inuc_niow il thie &nd of the yoar

14 tnventory of lraded Goods at Lhe beginping of the yoor
FG tventory of Teaded Goods at 1he end of the year

[Increase } f Deceease in Bxcise DUty on finished Goods
Stock at the end of the year ’
Stock at the beginaing of the year

20 Empioyee benofit ekp
TR Salacies, wapes and bofus
i) Contribution o Employees gratuify, leavn encashment and Other Funds
1} Director's Hemuneration ’
i} Staff Welfare Expenses
Total

.21 Finance Cosls:

- i) lnterest on Financial Liabilities al amantised cost
H  beterest on Ditect Taxes
hit} Interest on ndirect Taxes
ivi  {Mher borrowing costs
v Amprtisatlon of Uplront Feas
Total

22 Deprediation & winotration
i} Depreciation
i Amortisation

Tetal

201839 01718
9.636 B2 381852
70,789 66 71,727.44
FO,405.08 73,545.86
17.267.43) (9,636 53)
92,159.0% 65,909.05
2012-19 203718
99,507 60 90,018 31
99,507,480 A0,019.31
201819 20118
2,328.51 12,240 66
5,688.79 10,980.41
B,017.30 T2
2018-19 201748
428,20 303 07
480,35 42820
{45215} {125.13)
1,218.9% . 1,433.01
2,235.68 1,218.91
12,116.77} 3410
3569 28.04
. 35,69
35,69 {7.65)
- 16310
: {18210}
(2,533,213} {10L.78)
2018-19 7017-18
4,208.15 3,344.87
42797 21740
1,061.12 1,156.54
133,56 106.17
582879 4,576.98
201819 2017-18
"},282.88 730.32
3.15 76,26
055 227
£1.56 2841
486 %3]
1,380,10 853.16
2018-19 J047-18
4,067.85 2,869.07
2425 12,38
2,581.47

4,052.10

H




F018-38 21718

23 Other ekpenses

_.For certification and other services : o ’ : : 4.21 288

Power & Fuels 463792 B.173.21
Consumplicn of Consumables Stores and Spares 750 04 1,144 54
Cansumpimn of fackup Materials 1,074.59 B46.43
Waler Tharges ) ) ) Z11.48 32023
tabour Charpe: 53041 403,27
Imveard Freightl Charges 242.54 342.07
Qutward Expart Fremght Charges 2,570.26 3,218 87
Cleanng and Forwarding Expenses 148,76 9204
Repairs and Mambehance
fwilgings 133.5% JPER: 1
Machineties 291 A54 08
{thers 37563 282740
Transporiation Charges 2A55.65 1.864.52
Commission on sabes 32013 4008
Adverfisement ’ 582 505
Ditectar's Sitting Fres 9.61 B0
Books and Prriadicals G40 1.82
Business Promotion Exprenses 8122 11998
Lammlssion to Non-Cxecutive EBrectar 3650 26.50
Compuler Malntenance a0 .04 6572
Conveyance frpenscs . 2328 16.76
Donation ’ ’ . 3549 28,76
. OS50 Expenditure . 32358 5883
Geners Expenses o : : 86,17 5529
Inspection charges ) . 3144 4.35%
Insurance Chrarges ) 274,32 191.22
tembership & Subscritian 5115 772.24 .
Postape & Telegram 19.43 21,50 !
Professional and Legsl Expenses 4 ’ ’ . 1,319.00 £04.93
-Printing & Stelionery . : . : . 40.64 2.21
. Hent o 26.66 152,60
-Rates and Takes : : o RULEY B1.H3
"Rerierity Senre £ hanens : Co N4 1 97
- Travefling Expendes 443,55 2G0.49
Felephone Expenzes 49,07 51,24
. Vehicle Cxpenses . 22208 15518
. Auditors' remuneration 21.96 17.0F
- Bank Charges 18674 18176
Expected credit loss . .61
Exchange Loss B26.24 204,55
. Other Expenses : 141.58 7099
 Salas Tax Regaivabla w/ofl Co ' 39.66 5202
‘Lits on sale of investments 43.33 - i
Total 24,266.13 15,735.07
Particulars . 201819 217-18 :
“Paymenls Lo G suditors cormprises {ned of tux Input credit, wh ere applicable) : .
To Statiory auditors .
For sudit including consolidation o : . ' 15.50 1136
For limited review ’ ’ : - 225 283




2018-19 2017-18

24 Tax Expense
4}  Intome tax expense in the stakement of profit and ioss consists of:
Current Tax 230550 183390

Cefetred tax GBS 85
Incame Tax {ExcesslfShorl Provision of provious yoar .
Intome tax recognised in st L of profit o7 toss j 3,604,758

bl The reconchiation benween the provision of incarne tax of the Company ant amabnts camputed by applying the Indian startory income iax rate o
praiit before taxes is a5 follows

Particulars 2(1%-19 2011718
A Eursent Tax
Peafil Before Lax 10,287 B4 11,347 52
Enzcted Lax 1ates it indio (%5} 34.94% 34 63%
Cemputed expected bax exponses 3,594.98 342542
£fHect of non- deductible exponses 1EM0GD 323384
Effects of deductible Expenses 1,522.23) {1,379.57}
tren Taxable effects {1,301 £7) 1695 28}
Incame tax exprenses - Net A 7,301.50 2,9%3.91
Tax Wabkity 25 per Minimun Alternete Tax on lrook profits
tnimum Atornste Tax rate 21.55% 21 3a%
Lomputed tay lizbdity on Book profits 221703 243065
Tax cllect on adjustments:
1/5 portion of Opening [0 AS Reserve as on Marclt 31, 2017 (8.5} {B.19}
[ifect of non deductible cxpense : 6.29 157.78
Minimum Allernate Tax on Book Grofit n 2,214.36 257027
Higher ol Aor B 2.391.50 2,983.91
B Prefutred Tax
) Deferred tax assets/(Habllites) in refation 1o
: ’ " Particulars Opening Recopnised in Closing
profh sid loss

. Propetly Phant & Eyvipmest {1,385 21} GEB & [2.004.14)
Minimunt Alternate Tax 26595 T 24585
Provvisten (s doubtfvl advanced end debis 13h0 24,04 11100

O Tan diatowares 7i.l4 (440 AL
Prefminary expersss Ll b &2 -
As at March, 31, 2008 {90191} GE5.B5 {1,587.76}
Property Plant & Lquipment (2432411} 15175 {2,175.87)
Mirdrnum Allernate Tax 24595 - 24595
Provision for doubtfut advances and dabis 111,00 388 107.12
Tox disollowances 79.41 {3346} 11287
As at dlarch, 31, 2019 |1,587.76) 32217 {1,705.93}

27 Discloswre as requlced by Ace Ing Standard ~IND AS 33 "Earning Por Share” of the Companies {Indlan Accounting Standards) Ritles 2045,

Ked Profit f {loss] altribatable {o squlty shareholders and the welghted ber of shares culstanding for basic end difuted carnings par share are as
simmarised hetow: ’ o ;
- Particatars 2014-19 2017-18 i
Net Profit £ {Loss) as por Saternent of Profit and Loss R ) %] 767278
CQutstanding aquity shares at period end 50345405 1,00,09,083
Weighked sverage Mumber of Shares cutstanding during the period ~ Basic £.0045,405 1,00.08,083
Weighted average Number of Shares outstanding during Lhe period - Diluted 5.00,45405 1.00,09,081
Weighted average number of shares & per para 26 of hid AS 33" Earning per Share” 5,00,45,405 5,00,45.405
Earnings per Share - Basic (Rs.) 3554 15.33
Earnings pes Slisre - Diluted fRs) 1354 15.3%
Recanctllation of weighted ber of o ding during the period:
Particulars 20318-19 2G17-18
Norrinal Value of Equity Shares {Rs per shara} 10.00 10.00
For Basic EP%:
Tolal number of equily shares outstanding ot the boginning of the period 1,60.08,08) 100,092,081
Add : Issue of Equity Shares : . 4.00,36,324 .
Totaf number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the period 540.45,405 1,00,05,081
Far Pasic GRS
Welghted average number of equily sheres at the end of the period 5,00,45,405 5,00.09.0581
For Gikntive E85:
Weighted average number of shares esed In czlculating basic EP5 5,0045,405 1,00,09,081
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Contingent Habilitios and commitments {io the extent not provided los)

Lusctosure 1o awerdance with ind AS ~ 108 "Operating 5 15", o the Lomr

- {)ela{ls on unhedged foreign currency exnosures

Details of research and development expendilire recagaised as 80 expense

Farticutars . 20189 2017-18
Emplayer benefils expense o 140 53 160 80
Legal & Frofessional fecs 49 E3 4050
Other expensos 45 5B a0
Deptesiation snd smortsation cxpense 1686 5176
Capital experditure { Reter Wote 3{ig) 106 04 RE4.4D
30 842.95

Totaf

Particelars As at March 31,  Asat March 31,

2014 2018
{i} Contingent liahilities
(e} Liohifities Disputod - Appeals fited with respect to :
{il Inceme Tax on account of Disaltowances / Additions and default of TOS 17434 54 42
() VAT credils disattewed by the suthorities against which the company has preferred appeats 2227 2427
fb) Guorontees: .
{i} Giver: on behalf of WQS to their Venders 1,165.54 3, 066.41
(i} Furnished by banks on behaif of the Company FH6.05 SR0.01
fc} Qther money for vehich the Compeny is contingenlly fiable -
(i} Standby leiter of credil giveit on belralf of WOS 3,008 95 282942
(i}  Comrmitmenis
) {a) Fstimated smount of contracks remaining 1o be executed on capited strount fned of adviaces} 355,24 2,180.27
() Export obligation under Advance License Scheme on duty freo import of spociiic 1aw miadedals retnaining 11,13582 7,709.62
austanding

Gl Ledturs of Cregh 5,048, /9 (DR

Disclosire In accordanta with Ind AS — 17 “Leases”, of the Comg [tndlan At ing Stantards) Rules, 2015.
The Cornpany tios taken offtce premises an iesve and likense dagls which are cancellabie conleacts.

{indlon Accounthe Standards} Roles, 2005,

The Company is ongagad in ‘chemicads bugnage” aod ‘puwan g alion and @i U padenary seginend. Durisg e year ended Marcl 83, 2819 aud
‘March 31, 30E, the power gencrotion business does rot meel the criterin mentioned in para 13 of the budian Accounting Standard "Operating
Sepgment * {ind AS 102) and henee the same Is nod separately disclosed.

Sale to ane of the Subsidisry contribute 11% of the total Sales in the current year 2018-35  which was less than 109 in the previous yesr 2017-38.

i Standards) Rutes, 2015

Pizeloture in accardance with had AS - 24 "Rofated Party Disdusures™, ol the Comy { ndian Acc g

{¥etsils are given in Annexure -1

Derbvative instruments and Unhedged f Hedpe £ Swap Foreign Cuuenw Exposure

Particutars As al March 31, 2019 A5 2l March 31, 218
forelgr Carrency INR Foreign Curency iR

Trade feceivable [USD) 16,9480 1,136.93 28,82,900 252560

Trade Receivabie (EURO] o 68799 16712 o .

interes! receivalie {LSD) o 42,027 18.07 142,027 9238

Advances to supplicrs - UsD .16,67,835 1,156.27 - -

Louns and Advences Glven (ELRO} : . S - 39,800 32,16
- Loant and Advances Given [AED) . 332,803  B2,66 e -

Advance from Cuttermers (USD) . Lo _ 235,259 160.83 .
Chddvance [rom customer ([TURG) ' * 59,550 4636 - .
Interest payahle (USDY } 97,576 6745 85,541 55.64
Frade payable (USD} 7,652,044 ZF7.80 H9,533,354 581062
Trade payable [CHF} ) 7,880 5.42 - -
Barrowings (USD) &0,00,000 5,131.24 97,20,588 6,322.67
Detakls on hedged foreign currency exposures As ot March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
: Fareipn Currency INR Foreign Currency INR
Forwards - LSO - Sales 46,385,435 3,24571 42,554 27.81
Forwards - EURD - Sales 40,12,581 3,157.28 10,080,000 B34 58
Forecards - WSE Purchase 2,77,07,500 18,314 .95 78,159,855 5,:05.01
Qplions - LD - Buy 16,060,000 71875 . -
As at March 21, 2029 Ag ot March 31, 2008
Cetalls on Interest rete swap an Berrowings . foreien Currency INR Foreign Currenty INR

G444 (81,15 Coe -

Interest Rete Swap - USD




B Value of imports cculated an GIF basis

Pailiculars 201819 201718

Tratied goods 2,543.29 10,059 07

Rsw materiat 73,486 80 55491711

Caprifal poods 194 45 . 15341

Spare parts ) ) 1617 12.68
35 Significant accaunting judg esti and ptlons

The preparation of tinancial slatements requires managements judgmenls, estimate; snd gssumptions that impsets the reported amounts of
revenues, ekpenses, assels and kabifivies, and ihe accompanying notes thereon, Unceelainly abowt these assumptions ond estimates could resull in
outcamnes thet might require a material adiustment to the carrying ameunt of assets or liabilities in future penods,

Judgemaents .
The Company's managenient hes made the following judgements, which have the mast significant effect on the smounts recagnised i the separate
finan<ial stat t5, while fanmulaling the Comprany's accounting polices:

a4 Yaxes

The Company i eliglide for 100% 1ax holiday under section B0-1A of 1he fncame Tax Act, 1961 A3 5 resull, Uiming differences aristg and reversing
duting the tax holiday period are nol recognized by the Company,

b Defined benefit plans {gratuily benefils)
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plen and the present value of the gratuity obligation are delermined using actuarial vahuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making varfans assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the fulure. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases snd mortabty rates. Dug Lo the complexities invelved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined
benefil abligation is highly sensitive 1o changes in thete assurmnplions, Al assumptians are revi I ab each reporting date.

Discaunt rale: The said paraimetes is subject ta change {a determining Uhe appropriste discount rate flor plans operated in india), the management
considers the interest rates of povernment bonds in currencies which are eonsistent wWith the post-employment benefit obligalion. The underiying
bunds sre roviewed poriodicolly far quality: These having ckeosaive rodit spreads are excluded fevan e aalysis since tat they do st s eseint
{aigh yualily wuipurabe bunds. .

Maorlality rate: It is based oh pubiicly available mortality tables. Those mortalily tables temd to change at an Interval in response lo demographlc
changes. Prospective indrease In salary wnd gralvity are based on oxpocted fiture Inflation rales.

36 Finandal instraments
) The carrying vatiee and falr value of inancial instrumants by cotegories as at March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2018 {5 as follows:

Cairying Vatue Fair Vaiue
March 31,2019 March 31, 2008 Maren 33,2009 March 33, 2018

a)  Financial Assets
Amortsed Cost

Loans 1160891 937 58 L160.5% 937.58
investments 1,554.05 L6144 1,554.05 161244
Oihars 13595 188 74 13595 188,74
Trade reccivables 590,34 28,881 .33 30.286.34 2B,851.33
Cash and cash equivalents 454.98 13547 494 98 13547 H
Other Bank Balaneces 3,954.15 57659 3,954.15 576,59
Total Fingnclal Assets 37,6396.38 32.342.15 37,686.38 3234215

I} Financial Liabitities
Amprtised Cost

‘Boriowings 10,560.45 17,100,370 10,860.0% 17,102.70
‘Teade payables 30,057.01 18,930.72 30,017.04 18,530.72
Others £,984.07 5,108.26 5,984.07 5,108.26
Total Financial Liabifities 96.801,57 42,138.66 46,86187  43,A18.68

The management assessed Lhat fait value of cash and short-term deposits, trade receivabls, Irade peyables, hook overdrafte and other current
financlal assels and Habillties approximate their carrying amounts lergely duee to the sharl-term maturities of these instrumants.

e
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Falr Value Hierarchy

Thes section fatrss Lhe jod, Fng estimal
measired ab far valun and (b) measured 2t amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed i the flinancisd statements. To provide an
indication abow) the rehabilty of the inputs used in determining feir value, the grouf: has classiied ats financiaf instruments into Lhe three levels

mizde in determining (he Tt values of the Baendial instruments that are {a) recognised and

prescribed ender the eccotunding standard An explanation of each lovel latlows vnderneath the table

level L - Quoted prices {upadjusted) in actrve markets for identiced assels o Yiabilisies
Leve] 2 ~ faputs othar than guoted prices included within Level E 1hat afe observable for the asset or fiability, cithet directly (Fe. as prices) or

incirectly (t e, devived from prices).
Level 3 - inputs lor the assets or liabilities that are aot based on observable market data {unatservable dpis).

The foliowing table presents the far value measurement Rierarchy of financhal assets and iabilities measured at falr valur an tecoering bagis as at

Warch 3], 2039 end Mareh 31, 2018

Fair Value rent using
Farticvlars "Date of Valuatien Quoted pricesin Signifteant Significant
ariive markets observable unobservable
{tovel 1} Inputs nputs {fovel 3)
(Level 2]
Financlod Hobilities measured ot folr vafue:
Farward Contracts : 31-Mar-19 125,52

-Mat B . 073

Forward Cantracls




a8 Finanglal Risk Management
The Company i edposed tovarmous financal nsks erismg fromats underlyng eperations and fineneal activities The Comnpany iy primadily exprsed to
markel fisk {i @ anterest rate and foregn curichcy 1ik), Lot nisk and hquidstly risk The Company’s Corporate Tieasury function plays the rofe of
moailering {tnancial resh atising from buskiess eparations And linanciag actailes.

Feraneial eisk mansgement, which inchudes fargign carreney Nk, inteicst eate pisk, eredit and liguidily csk are very closely moniioed by the senior
manégcmer‘.l, the finence Committee and the Board of Directoes Yhe Company has a Forex Rk Managentent policy under which alt the forex
hedging opotations are dane The Comgpany's pelices and guidolines also cover aress such as cash mansgement, inveitment of excess funds and
the reising of short and fong-term dobt. Complionoe with the pelities and guidelines is managed by the Corporate Freasury function The oljective
of [nancial risk managemant 15 to manage and controt inancial nisk exy welhin st bile p , wiibe eptimesing (he 1eturmn.

1) mrarket Risk
Matket risk is i cisk arpang out of the fuctuations in fair value of future cash flows of 3 finandial instruoment because of changes in market prices
taarket risk comprises thiee types of risk: Interest rate risk, forgign curreney risk and other price rigk, such as equity price fisk and cammaodity risk
Financial nstruments alfected by markel risk meludes loans and Sorrowings, deposils, vestments and derivative finantial instrements. The
Lompany enters Into the derivativic cantracts as approved by the Board o manage Its expesure to interest rate risk and foregh cusrency risk, from
time o time.

A} foretgn Currency Risk
Foreipn currency tisk also known os Exchange Currency Risk is the risk arising out of fluciluation in the fzir valoe of fuluie cash flows of an exposure
brcawse of changes in forelgn exchauge rates. Foraign currency risk in the campany is attributable fo company’s operating activities and linancing
activilies, b the operating activilies, the company's exchange rale risk primarily arises when revanue F costs are generated in g currency that is
different from the reporling currency flransaction tisk). The Company manages the Net exposure based on 2 duly approved pohey by the Board. The
infarmation b monbored by the Audil commitlee and the fosrd of Directors on & quarteny basis, This Toreign cureency risk expotuie of the
Company 1s mainty in U.5. Dedlar {USD) and Eure fEUR). The Company's exposute to foreign currency changes for all othet cuzrencies is not maleriatb

The carrying amounls of the company's farcign curroncy dencrminated monetary assels and monetary Balifitivs at the end of e 1eporting penods
expressedd in foregn cunenty are os follows:

Assils Llabilities
Asalbarch 3%, Asalbarch 31, Asal March 33, AsatMarch 3,
18 2{HE Pl 2018
ush 34,07,44%.897 a0,24,927 706,90.878.52 187,30.480
Eui 2,065,799 39 39,800,000 59,55¢.37 : .
ALD 3,32,803.44 ) -
CHF . 1 BUOOD

Farelgh Currency Sensitvity analysls:
The compatly is mainly exposed to US0 and EURO fluctuations

As at harch 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Impact en profitfiioss} for the year Aupee Rupee weakens Rupee Strengihens  Rupee weakons
Strengthiens by 1% Ly 1% by 1% by 1%

e 35,23 {75.2%) 144.30 {244.30)

FUR [1.59) 1.9 {288} -]

ALD {o.62) 10.62) - . -

CHF 0.05 [0.05) - .
Toratgn exchange dertvalive conlracis
Tite Company uses devivative financial inste ts exchesively, for hedging the Minencizl risks that arlse from its commercial business o finanting
activitles. The Company's Corporate Treasury team manages s foreign corrency risk by bhedping {ransactions that are expected to octur within 12

mosilhs for hedges of projecied sales, pucchiases and capital expenditures, When 2 derivative contract is entered for the purpose of hadging, the

Company negetistes the torms of those derivetives 1o malch the terms of the hedged vaposwre, For hedges of projected transactions, 1he
derivalives cover the poriod of expostre from the point the cash flows of the satd lransactions are projecied to the point of settiement of the
resulting receivable ar payable thal is d ted tn the foreign cuirency. All identified sxposires are managed as per the pelicy duly approved by
the Board of Directars, ’

i | Rate Risk #
Jnterest rate risk arises lom the movenients in interest rates which could have effccts on the Comgrany’s net income or finzncla! pasition, Changes
In interest Fates may cause vidiations in inlerest income and expenses resulting from interest-hearing assets and liabilities. The Company's exprosure
to the risk of changes in market wkerest (sles refates primanily to the Company’s long-term debt abigotions with fioating interest rates.

The Compahy manages 165 interest rate disk by having a0 apeeed pertfotio of fized and variable rote borrowings. Out of the total borrowings, the
amount of lixed interest foan s fs. 247.71 fac and floating interest loan is Ry 10,619.77 lac IMarch 31, 2018: fived interest loan fis 371.00 {ac and
Foaling interost toan Re, ¥257.20 {ac) With all the other varisbihes remaining constant, the following table dems the itivity Lo
reasanably chapge in interest rates on the borrewings:

ALAB-1% 2017-18
Rupee igans Usiz {oans Rupee loany UsD loans
Interest intorest interest imerex
rale decreases decreases by rato decreates decreasos by
by 1.00 % . {.15% Ly 1LO0% 0.15%
impact o Profit and Loss © Probil f{ Loess) 57.78 .26 40,60 4.E8
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“bnes with banks § fimancial institutions,

Within oneyear £ 12 B P Wiore than 5
yoars yoars yoars
As at March 31, 2019 B o
Botiowings® 580672 RV 443436 -
Trate Fayables 0,017.01
Oilier Traaceal Liabjidic ) 2,544,281
ST 39,400.9% 3,026.26 4,434 36

As 3l March 33, J018
Borrowings® 14,112.65 228872 2,988.02 1240
Trade Bayables 19,930.72
Otle Finnangial Ligbilittes LAYS 1

36,638.53 2,286.73 2,585.02 32,40

© adverse economit environnent. Low geating bevels also equip the Company with the abikity to navigate business stresses on one hand and ratse
- groval capital on the other. This policy alse provides flexibility of fond raising options for Tuture, whith |s especially important in times of giobal

Purticaiars

Gross Debt 14,267.34 19,422 B0
" Less: .
Cash and Cash Eguivaient 49492 13547
. Other Bank Balsnce 200000 -
“Het debt (4) 11,742.36 31828733
Total Equiry (£} 45,550,680 37,5628
Gearing ratto (A/1) .26 0.51

The Board of Birecters st their meeting held on July 2, 2019 has recommended dividend of R 0,35 per ouily share which it subject to shareholder

Crechit Risk Management
Credit rigk i the resh that counterparty will nat mect .ts shlgations snder 2 financiat nstrurment of customer comuracd, beachng, 1o 2 financal kasy The

Comtpany is exposed W credd sk from s operatng attivlies [prmarty trede recewvabios) and rom A3 fmanomg actrates, incfuding deposits with
banks and financwl mstitetions, foremn exchange transactions and other financizt instremeats

hlas the €0 neredieally aversies tHie finanoab aobatulite of costomess taking inte zsecreed thae financial candilinns

A At Misrch 31, A5 Al WMarch 31,
ploy] 2018
30,396 34 28,891 33

o manane deadno son

Trade receivabing
{Refer pte 52 §

Allowanees Tod Credil Loss {25.33) {4021}

(Refer Note 3.2 fa})

Othes than financial assets mentioned above, none of e Company’s financial assets are either npsired oc past due. There were ho indications that
there would e defautts m payment obdipations.

Ligurdity Risk Management

Ligsridity visk is the risk of non-avaiability of finznctal facilties available 1o \he Company te meet its nancisl obligations The Company's objeclive is
ity of funding and flexibility using money market insteoments, bank overdrally, bank losns st other types of

to maintain & §alaner between conti
facilities. The figuitity management b governed by the Boazed approved fiquidity mansgement policy. Any deviation from the policy has to be
approved by the Treasury Menagement comprising of Masnaging Girector, Chief Financial Officer and Treasury Hoxd The Dormpany assesses the
cancentralion of nsk with respect to refinancing its debt, puarantee given, and funding of Its capital expendituee nends of the future The Company
Inangres its hguidity by hotday appropriate volumes of louid gssets which sre available to 1ts disposad on T +3 basis ond by mairlaining open credit

The table below enalyse the Company's financial Bsbilities into relevand maturity based an their contraciual maturitics:

* including Carrant Maturity of nen cittant hotrmving

Lopital mansgement
The Company continues Hs policy of a conseivalive capital structore whith bas ensured thal it retains Lhe highes! credit rating even amidst an

econumit volatitity,

March 31,2019 March 31, 2814

appecval 31 the Annuad General Meeting. The tolal payrenl of this accoling on approval by the members would be fis. 211,16 lsc [previows year Bs.
181 fac }includtng dhvidend distribution tax thereon.

The bafance sheel, statemnent of profit and loss, cash fiow statement, staterment of changes in equity, statorment of significent accounting policies
and the other explanatory notes forms an integral part of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended WMarch 31, 2019,

For and on betialf of the Board of Directors
Laxmi Orpanic Industries Limited

For Matvarial Vepar & Co, :
Chattered Arcountants ’ — Wb"
S - W -
>

As per our report of even date

Fitgn Registration NWGB?}W

flizhat ki Vasuden Goenka
Partner idnaping Director Chainman
M., 124960 // DIN-ODIS526T DIE-00059215%

L . C
Y 5:.-,-«.“(\ )i’ S P W
farttin Foy Chowdhun
Chied Financixt Officg {
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Flace © Mumbaj
Date : julyll, 2019 Dale : huly 2, 2019

Place : Miwmbai




Annexure -1

Disclosure in accordance with ind AS - 24 "Related Party Disclosures”, of the Companias { indian Accounting Standards] Rules, 2015

Enterprises that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, contral, or are controlied by, or are under commaon cantrol with, the reporting, enlerprise

;9 Subsidiaries

1 Cellbion Litestciences Pt Lid,

2 Laxmi Lifesgiences Pvt, Lid,

3 Laxmi Organic Industries {furope) BY

i Laxmi Petrochem Middle Cast FZC

5 Viva Lifesciences Pyt Ltd.

& Saideep Traders

8 Associates and joint ventures of the reporting entetprise

1 Suvas Holding Ltd. Tili February 15, 2019

C Key Management Personnef

1 Vasudeo Goenka

2 Ravi Goenka

4 Radhesh Welling © T November 15, 2018

& Relatives of Key Nanagement Personne!

hi Rajeev Goenka .

2 Aditl Goenka

3 Aryavrat Goenka

4 Awvantika Goeitka

i HarshivarcHian Guoeika

£ Ttatiis) g Guiithe

7 Mikarika Goenks

8 Vimladovi Goenia

£ Enterprises over which any person desciibied in {€) s abie Lo exercise cantrol

1 Amrutsagar Construction Pvl, Lic. -

2 Brady Invesiments Pyl Lid.

3 Crescent Oils Pvl. Ltd

) Lrerson Power Tech Py, Ltd,

5 tnlernational Knowledge Park Pvi, Ltd,

6 Laxmidevi Nathmal Goenka Charitable Trasl
7 Maharashira Aldehydes & Chemicals Lid,
g Merton Finance & Trading
8 Ojas Oye-Chem {indiz) Pvt. Ltd.
10 Pedestal Finance & Trading Pvt. Ltd.

11 Rajeev Goenka HUF

12 Ravi Goenka HUF

13 Sherry Exports Pyt Ltd

14 Zenith DistHurtors

15 Wintech Systemsy

16 Varadvinayak Muolti imipex Pyt Lwd

ki Merton Finance & Trading Pvi. Lid

18 Pedestaf Finance & Trading Pvt. Lid.

18 Ravi Goenka Trustee of Yellow Stane Trust




The {otlowing are the transaclions with related parties
Related party transactions

i 2 L] 5
- - . g
= [ - =
Related Parties Transactions z 3 el BB °E & Ry X ®
3 55 5 8 §r8 | 8&5% g
£ s> 28 558 |E3sd
wo o e Fn © = GEE=
=4 P = = g;
Interest Paid GEST) 116.30)
Lawini Chganic Industries {Firope) BY . -
{16.20) (16.20}
Interest Received 86.70 86.70
[77.53) {72.53
Laxri Orpanic thdustries [furgpe) Y .13 - 8.13
f2.80) (7.80]
Cedlbinn Lifesciencas Pyl Ltid. JR.57 785y
{69.73} (69.73)
. 5.26 6.26
Rent, Commisslon and Other Expenses 15.60] .50]
Merton Finance & Trading Pl Lid 1.08 1,08
- - {1.08) {1.08)
Sherry Exporls Pvi, Lid, 5.18 518
""""""""""" - [4.80) [4.80)
Donatian $14.08 J14.10
[16.00} {16.00)
Laxmidevi Nathmal Goenka Charitable Trust 108.24% 108.25
(1.00) {3.00}
Laxmi Foundation 205.75 205.75
{15.00) (15,00
Expenses Incurred on behal! of 34,93 g4l 44,05
{27.10} - (10.59) {37.79)
Brady investments Pyt Lid, - 2.11 4.11
- 110.69) {10.59)
Laxmi Petrochem Middie East F2C 34.93 ' 34.93
{27.10} - {27.10)
. i1l 111
Expenses Recovered - 8.32) 18.39)
Maharashira Aldehydes & Chemicals Ltd. - 1.11 1,11
- - {B.32) {8.32)
Sales 16,800,892 36.77 16,8372.70
{12,871.03) {285.36) {13,106,39}
Laxmi Drganic industries {Eurepe} BY 16,684.73 - - 16,684.73
) {12,073.96) {12,071.96)
Laxmi Petrochem Middle East FZC 2124 #1.24
Maharashtra Aldehydes & Chemicals Lid. 35.77 36.77
- {285.36] {285.36)
5,040.85 7.23 504808
Purchases
§1,220.77} {50,65) {1,271.42}
Laxmi Petrochem Middie East FZC 2,287.04 . 2,287.04
1451.08) {451.08)
Saideep Traders 2,753.82 - - 2,753.82
{769.69) . - - [769.69)
Sitting Fees - 1,60 0.80 249
{340} {0.80) 12.20)
Vasudeo Goenka 160 . 1.60
11,40} . {1.40}
Rajeev Goenka - (L8O 0.80
(0.80 [0.80)
192,35 - 192.35
Salary
(39.10) {39.10)
Harshvardhan Goenka 19235 152.35
- 132.10) {39.10)




) ) - - TTL061.43 - 1,061.11
H Directors Remuneralion
T T - - {1,158.59} - - {1,158.59)
RaviGoenks . - 863.10 : . 263,10
) {8458 : : . [B04.58)
fadhesh Welling 19801 - . 198.01
{35371} . . {353.71)
Sales investment {Suvas Holding Limited} . - 60.83 136.50 - 177,33
- . (191.00) 1375.00) - 566,00}
Ravi Goenka G283 . . 60.83
{191.00) - - (191,00}
Rajeev Gaenka 116,50 . 116.50
- . {375.00] - {375.00}
Equity lnvestaent In 3V : v1.63 : : . 9168
{22745} {745.60) - - . (473.09)
Suvas Holding Lid. - H91.63 . - - 91.63
- {245.60) - - - {245.60)
Dividend Paid - - .00 0.76 129.75 33051
- - {57.64) [34.42) {7.36) {zpa.41)
Vasudeo Goanka {1.00 - - 0.00
{1195} v - {11.95}
Ravi Goepka 0.00 . ' 6.00
{45.69} - - {45.59)
Rajeev Goenka 0.20 . 0.20
{15.74) - (11.74)
Yellow Stone Trust 120.56 120.56
Dalance Payable As On 31.03.2019 - . 18:32 11820 215 193,87
(451.08) - - - (6.70) (457,78}
Laxmi Petrechem Middle Cast £70 . . -
' {151 08) : ' : - {451.08) {
,118.91 . - 2116 4,442.07 i
Balance fecelvable As On 31,03,2019 12.207.20] _ : (2748} (3.230.65) i
-1Laxmi Drganie Industries (Evrope) BY 0315189 _' B . . - 3,151.89
: : {'—'M ?0} e A — e —— 21 30
Celibivn Lifestignces Pyl, LW, HOB.O8 - - - - GB8.08
(619.51) . . - - (B14.51)
. |5aideep Tradeys 557,32 . . - . 557.32
) {762.67} - - - - (¥62.87)
Laxmi Petrochem Middle Sast (FZE| . . . . .
{119.40) - . - . {119.40)
1,165.54 - . - - 1,165.54
Corporate Guranies As On 31.03,2019 606.22] - - - - - 506,22)
Laxmi Qrpanic industries {Europe} By 1,165,54 . - - - 1,165.54
806.22) . - . - {806.22)

Note: 1 Figures in brackets are pertaining to previous year,
In January, 2019 the campany has issved Bonus shares - (4,00, 35 324 5hares} to zllits exlqtmg share holdersin the atic ol 1:4 shart_s st face value of Rs 10/-. The

Moie: 2
same transacuons has not been dlsclosed in glorsaid takile,

\ae




